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UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

Form 10-Q

(Mark One)
þ QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES

EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the quarterly period ended March 31, 2007

OR
o TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES

EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the transition period from          to          

Commission file number 1-6732

Covanta Holding Corporation
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware 95-6021257
(State or other jurisdiction of

incorporation or organization)
(I.R.S. Employer

Identification Number)

40 Lane Road, Fairfield, NJ 07004
(Address of Principal Executive Office) (Zip code)

(973) 882-9000
(Registrant�s telephone number including area code)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was
required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.  Yes þ     No o

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, or a non-accelerated
filer. See definition of �accelerated filer and large accelerated filer� in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer þ     Accelerated filer o     Non-accelerated filer o

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange
Act).  Yes o     No þ

The number of shares of the registrant�s Common Stock outstanding as of the last practicable date.
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Class Outstanding at April 23, 2007

Common Stock, $0.10 par value 153,793,825 shares
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Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

Certain statements in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q may constitute �forward-looking� statements as defined in
Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 (the �Securities Act�), Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
(the �Exchange Act�), the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 (the �PSLRA�) or in releases made by the
Securities and Exchange Commission (�SEC�), all as may be amended from time to time. Such forward-looking
statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other important factors that could cause the actual
results, performance or achievements of Covanta Holding Corporation and its subsidiaries (�Covanta�) or industry
results, to differ materially from any future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by such
forward-looking statements. Statements that are not historical fact are forward-looking statements. Forward-looking
statements can be identified by, among other things, the use of forward-looking language, such as the words �plan,�
�believe,� �expect,� �anticipate,� �intend,� �estimate,� �project,� �may,� �will,� �would,� �could,� �should,� �seeks,� or �scheduled to,� or other
similar words, or the negative of these terms or other variations of these terms or comparable language, or by
discussion of strategy or intentions. These cautionary statements are being made pursuant to the Securities Act, the
Exchange Act and the PSLRA with the intention of obtaining the benefits of the �safe harbor� provisions of such laws.
Covanta cautions investors that any forward-looking statements made by Covanta are not guarantees nor are indicative
of future performance. Important assumptions and other important factors that could cause actual results to differ
materially from those forward-looking statements with respect to Covanta, include, but are not limited to, the risks and
uncertainties affecting their businesses described in Item 1A. Risk Factors of Covanta�s Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2006 and in other securities filings by Covanta.

Although Covanta believes that its plans, intentions and expectations reflected in or suggested by such
forward-looking statements are reasonable, actual results could differ materially from a projection or assumption in
any of its forward-looking statements. Covanta�s future financial condition and results of operations, as well as any
forward-looking statements, are subject to change and inherent risks and uncertainties. The forward-looking
statements contained in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q are made only as of the date hereof and Covanta does not
have or undertake any obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statements whether as a result of new
information, subsequent events or otherwise, unless otherwise required by law.
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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

COVANTA HOLDING CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

For the
Three Months Ended

March 31,
2007 2006

(Unaudited)
(In thousands, except per share

amounts)

OPERATING REVENUES:
Waste and service revenues $ 198,911 $ 191,369
Electricity and steam sales 113,666 109,178
Other operating revenues 17,632 4,809

Total operating revenues 330,209 305,356

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Plant operating expenses 202,007 186,549
Depreciation and amortization expense 48,043 46,397
Net interest expense on project debt 14,605 15,998
Write-down of assets 18,266 �
Other operating expenses 16,816 2,690
General and administrative expenses 22,192 18,204

Total operating expenses 321,929 269,838

Operating income 8,280 35,518

Other income (expense):
Investment income 5,184 2,403
Interest expense (21,260) (28,483)
Loss on extinguishment of debt (32,006) �

Total other expenses (48,082) (26,080)

(Loss) income before income tax benefit (expense), minority interests and
equity in net income from unconsolidated investments (39,802) 9,438
Income tax benefit (expense) 18,176 (4,263)
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Minority interests (1,398) (600)
Equity in net income from unconsolidated investments 5,106 6,843

NET (LOSS) INCOME $ (17,918) $ 11,418

(Loss) Earnings Per Share:
Basic $ (0.12) $ 0.08

Diluted $ (0.12) $ 0.08

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the condensed consolidated financial statements.
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COVANTA HOLDING CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

As of
March 31, December 31,

2007 2006
(Unaudited)

(In thousands, except per
share amounts)

ASSETS
Current:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 139,677 $ 233,442
Marketable securities available for sale 3,200 7,080
Restricted funds held in trust 163,439 178,054
Receivables (less allowances of $3,265 and $4,469) 207,201 209,306
Unbilled service receivables 57,899 56,868
Deferred income taxes 31,642 24,146
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 93,016 94,690

Total Current Assets 696,074 803,586
Property, plant and equipment, net 2,585,650 2,637,923
Investments in fixed maturities at market (cost: $31,122 and $35,833) 30,498 35,007
Restricted funds held in trust 210,246 229,867
Unbilled service receivables 68,825 73,067
Intangible assets, net 371,339 383,574
Goodwill 91,282 91,282
Investments in investees and joint ventures 78,329 73,717
Other assets 101,465 109,797

Total Assets $ 4,233,708 $ 4,437,820

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS� EQUITY
Current:
Current portion of long-term debt $ 14,324 $ 36,434
Current portion of project debt 190,585 190,242
Accounts payable 28,489 20,151
Deferred revenue 22,092 16,457
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 181,210 197,468

Total Current Liabilities 436,700 460,752
Long-term debt 1,017,261 1,223,689
Project debt 1,189,713 1,245,705
Deferred income taxes 358,272 420,263
Other liabilities 340,009 305,578
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Total Liabilities 3,341,955 3,655,987

Commitments and Contingencies (Note 16) 
Minority Interests 40,738 42,681

Stockholders� Equity:
Preferred stock ($0.10 par value; authorized 10,000 shares; none issued and
outstanding) � �
Common stock ($0.10 par value; authorized 250,000 shares; issued 154,140 and
147,657 shares; outstanding 153,795 and 147,500 shares) 15,414 14,766
Additional paid-in capital 753,109 619,685
Accumulated other comprehensive income 2,468 3,942
Accumulated earnings 80,059 100,775
Treasury stock, at par (35) (16)

Total Stockholders� Equity 851,015 739,152

Total Liabilities and Stockholders� Equity $ 4,233,708 $ 4,437,820

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the condensed consolidated financial statements.
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COVANTA HOLDING CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the
Three Months Ended

March 31,
2007 2006

(Unaudited)
(In thousands)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net (loss) income $ (17,918) $ 11,418
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization expense 48,043 46,397
Amortization of long-term debt deferred financing costs 863 630
Write-down of assets 18,266 �
Loss on extinguishment of debt 32,006 �
Amortization of debt premium and discount (3,757) (5,888)
Stock-based compensation expense 1,978 831
Equity in net income from unconsolidated investments (5,106) (6,842)
Minority interests 1,398 600
Deferred income taxes (19,423) (2,817)
Other, net (1,170) 3,517
Change in operating assets and liabilities, net of effects of acquisition:
Receivables 902 9,409
Unbilled service receivables 5,046 4,070
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (6,979) (13,087)
Unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses (1,494) (3,083)
Other, net 3,799 4,945

Net cash provided by operating activities 56,454 50,100

INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from the sale of investment securities 8,554 2,061
Purchase of investment securities � (586)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (19,074) (18,030)
Other, net 230 7

Net cash used in investing activities (10,290) (16,548)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from the issuance of common stock, net 135,936 �
Proceeds from rights offering, net � 20,498
Proceeds from the exercise of options for common stock 111 330
Proceeds from borrowings on long-term debt 949,901 �
Proceeds from borrowings on project debt 2,442 �
Principal payments on long-term debt (1,158,968) (14,030)
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Principal payments on project debt (55,939) (52,901)
Payments of long-term debt deferred financing costs (18,324) �
Payments of tender premiums on debt extinguishment (32,694) �
Decrease in holding company restricted funds 6,660 �
Decrease in restricted funds held in trust 34,236 37,334
Distributions to minority partners (3,395) (2,656)

Net cash used in financing activities (140,034) (11,425)

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 105 56

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (93,765) 22,183
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 233,442 128,556

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 139,677 $ 150,739

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the condensed consolidated financial statements.
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COVANTA HOLDING CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF STOCKHOLDERS� EQUITY
For The Three Months Ended March 31, 2007

Accumulated
Additional Other

Common Stock Paid-In ComprehensiveAccumulated
Treasury

Stock
Shares Amount Capital Income Earnings Shares Amount Total

(Unaudited)
(In thousands)

Balance as of
December 31,
2006 147,657 $ 14,766 $ 619,685 $ 3,942 $ 100,775 157 $ (16) $ 739,152
Shares issued in
equity offering,
net of costs 6,118 612 135,324 135,936
Stock-based
compensation
expense 1,978 1,978
Effect of FIN 48
adoption (2,798) (2,798)
Shares cancelled
for terminated
employees 1 13 (1) �
Shares cancelled
for tax
withholdings for
vested stock
awards (3,954) 175 (18) (3,972)
Exercise of
options to
purchase common
stock 15 1 110 111
Shares issued in
non-vested stock
award 350 35 (35) �
Comprehensive
loss, net of
income tax
benefit:
Net loss (17,918) (17,918)
Foreign currency
translation 434 434

217 217
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Net unrealized
loss on
available-for-sale
securities
Net realized gain
on derivative
instruments (2,125) (2,125)

Total
comprehensive
loss (1,474) (17,918) (19,392)

Balance as of
March 31, 2007 154,140 $ 15,414 $ 753,109 $ 2,468 $ 80,059 345 $ (35) $ 851,015

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the condensed consolidated financial statements.
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COVANTA HOLDING CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)

Note 1.  Organization and Basis of Presentation

Organization

The financial statements in this report represent the consolidation of Covanta Holding Corporation and its
wholly-owned and majority-owned subsidiaries. Covanta Holding Corporation conducts all of its operations through
subsidiaries which are engaged in the businesses of waste and energy services, and insurance services. Covanta
Holding Corporation�s predominant business is the waste and energy services business.

The terms �we,� �our,� �ours,� �us,� �Covanta� and �Company� refer to Covanta Holding Corporation and its subsidiaries; the
term �Covanta Energy� refers to our subsidiary Covanta Energy Corporation and its subsidiaries; the term �ARC
Holdings� refers to our subsidiary Covanta ARC Holdings, Inc. and its subsidiaries; the term �CPIH� refers to our
subsidiary Covanta Power International Holdings, Inc.; and the term �NAICC� refers to our subsidiary National
American Insurance Company of California and its subsidiaries.

We are a leading developer, owner and operator of infrastructure for the conversion of energy-from-waste, waste
disposal and renewable energy production businesses in the United States and abroad. We also engage in the
independent power production business outside the United States. We own, have equity investments in, and/or operate
54 energy generation facilities, 42 of which are in the United States and 12 of which are located outside the United
States. Our energy generation facilities use a variety of fuels, including municipal solid waste, water (hydroelectric),
natural gas, coal, wood waste, landfill gas and heavy fuel-oil. We also own or operate several businesses that are
associated with our energy-from-waste business, including a waste procurement business, two landfills, and several
waste transfer stations. We also operate one domestic water treatment facility.

We also have investments in subsidiaries engaged in insurance operations in California. We hold all of the voting
stock of Covanta Insurance Holding Corporation, which indirectly owns 100% of the common stock of NAICC, our
principal operating insurance subsidiary. The operations of NAICC are in property and casualty insurance. NAICC
writes non-standard private automobile insurance policies in California.

Given our increased focus on developing our international waste and energy business, we have decided, during this
quarter, to segregate what we previously reported as our Waste and Energy Services segment into two new segments:
Domestic and International. Our remaining operations, which we previously reported as our Other Services segment,
which was comprised of the holding company and insurance subsidiaries� operations, does not meet the quantitative
thresholds which require separate disclosure as a reportable segment. Therefore, we currently have two reportable
segments, Domestic and International, which are comprised of our domestic and international waste and energy
services operations, respectively.

During January and February 2007, we completed a recapitalization plan through public offerings of common stock
and debt, and refinanced Covanta Energy debt facilities. In addition, in February 2007, we completed tender offers for
outstanding notes previously issued by certain intermediate subsidiaries of Covanta Energy. Additional information,
including material terms related to our recapitalization plan, is contained in Note 12. Changes in Capitalization.

Basis of Presentation
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The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
instructions to Form 10-Q. As permitted by the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission
(�SEC�), the financial statements contain certain condensed financial information and exclude certain footnote
disclosures normally included in audited consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with United States
generally accepted accounting principles (�GAAP�). In presenting the unaudited condensed consolidated financial
statements, our management makes estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported and related
disclosures. Estimates, by their nature, are based on judgments and available information. Accordingly, actual results
could differ from those estimates. In the opinion of our management, the accompanying
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COVANTA HOLDING CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS � (Continued)
financial statements contain all adjustments, including normal recurring accruals, necessary to fairly present the
accompanying financial statements. Operating results for the interim period are not necessarily indicative of the
results that may be expected for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007. For further information, refer to the
consolidated financial statements and footnotes thereto included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2006.

The condensed consolidated financial statements reflect the results of our operations, cash flows and financial position
and of our majority-owned or controlled subsidiaries. Investments in companies that are not majority-owned or
controlled, but in which we have significant influence are accounted for under the equity method. Significant
influence is generally deemed to exist if we have an ownership interest in the voting stock of the investee of between
20% and 50%, although other factors, such as representation on the investee�s board of directors, are considered in
determining whether the equity method of accounting is appropriate. Investments in companies in which we do not
have the ability to exercise significant influence are carried at the lower of cost or estimated realizable value.

Certain prior period amounts have been reclassified in the condensed consolidated financial statements to conform to
the current period presentation. All intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

Note 2.  New Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (�FASB�) issued Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (�SFAS�) No. 157, �Fair Value Measurements� (�SFAS 157�). SFAS 157 defines fair value, establishes a
framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting principles and expands disclosures about fair
value measurements. SFAS 157 will be applied under other accounting principles that require or permit fair value
measurements, as this is a relevant measurement attribute. This statement does not require any new fair value
measurements. We will adopt the provisions of SFAS 157 beginning January 1, 2008. We are currently evaluating the
impact of the adoption of this statement on our consolidated financial statements.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, �The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities, including an amendment of FASB Statement No. 115� (�SFAS 159�). SFAS 159 provides companies with the
option to report selected financial assets and liabilities at fair value that are not currently required to be measured at
fair value. The objective of this statement is to reduce both complexity in accounting for financial instruments and the
volatility in earnings caused by measuring related assets and liabilities differently without having to apply complex
hedge accounting provisions. The decision about whether to elect the fair value option is applied on an instrument by
instrument basis, with a few exceptions; the decision is irrevocable; and it is applied only to entire instruments and not
to portions of instruments. Upon implementation, an entity will report the effect of the first remeasurement to fair
value as a cumulative-effect adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings. An entity would recognize
unrealized gains and losses on items for which the fair value option has been elected in earnings at each subsequent
reporting date. We are currently evaluating whether we will elect to apply the fair value option of any our assets and
liabilities and the impact of the election on our consolidated financial statements.

Note 3.  Acquisitions

Covanta Onondaga Limited Partnership
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On December 27, 2006, we acquired for $27.5 million in cash the limited partnership interests held by unaffiliated
entities in Covanta Onondaga Limited Partnership, our subsidiary which owns and operates an energy-from-waste
facility in Onondaga County, New York, giving us 100% ownership interest in such subsidiary. This acquisition was
not material to our condensed consolidated financial statements. Therefore, disclosures of pro forma financial
information have not been presented.
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COVANTA HOLDING CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS � (Continued)

China Joint Venture

On February 12, 2007, we entered into agreements relating to the subscription for a 40% equity interest in Chongqing
Sanfeng Environmental Industry Co., Ltd. (�Sanfeng�). Sanfeng, a company located in Chongqing Municipality, China,
is engaged in the business of owning and operating energy-from-waste projects and providing design and engineering,
procurement and construction services for energy-from-waste facilities in China. Sanfeng currently owns minority
equity interests in two 1,200 metric tons per day 24 MW mass-burn energy-from-waste projects. On April 25, 2007,
we closed on this investment and Sanfeng was converted to a Sino-foreign equity joint venture under Chinese law in
which we hold a 40% equity interest and Chongqing Iron & Steel Company (Group) Limited, holds the remaining
60% equity interest. We made an initial cash payment of approximately $11 million in connection with our investment
in Sanfeng.

Note 4.  Stock-Based Compensation

We recognize stock-based compensation expense in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004),
�Share-Based Payments� (�SFAS 123R�). Stock-based compensation expense for all stock-based compensation awards
granted after December 31, 2005 is based on the grant date fair value estimated in accordance with the provisions of
SFAS 123R. For stock-based compensation awards granted prior to, but not yet vested as of December 31, 2005,
stock-based compensation expense is based on the grant date fair value estimated in accordance with the original
provision of SFAS No. 123, �Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.�

We recognized compensation expense based upon the number of stock options and restricted stock awards expected to
vest, which was initially determined based on historical turnover experience of Covanta Energy employees�
populations from the Covanta Energy pension plan and subsequently adjusted during the year ended December 31,
2006, based upon actual forfeitures. We review the forfeiture rate at least annually and revise compensation expense,
if necessary. We recognize compensation costs using the graded vesting attribution method over the requisite service
period of the award, which is generally the vesting term of three to five years.

We received $0.1 million and $0.3 million from the exercise of non-qualified stock options in the three months ended
March 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The tax benefits related to the exercise of the non-qualified stock options and
the vesting of the restricted stock award were not recognized during the three months ended March 31, 2007 and 2006
due to our net operating loss carryforwards (�NOLs�). When the NOLs have been fully utilized by us, we will recognize
a tax benefit and an increase in additional paid-in capital for the excess tax deductions received on the exercised
non-qualified stock options and vested restricted stock. Future realization of the tax benefit will be presented in cash
flows from financing activities in the condensed consolidated statements of cash flows in the period the tax benefit is
recognized.

Stock-Based Awards

We adopted the Covanta Holding Corporation Equity Award Plan for Employees and Officers (the �Employees Plan�)
and the Covanta Holding Corporation Equity Award Plan for Directors (the �Directors Plan�) (collectively, the �Award
Plans�), effective with stockholder approval on October 5, 2004. On July 25, 2005, our Board of Directors approved
and on September 19, 2005, our stockholders approved the amendment to the Employees Plan to authorize the
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issuance of an additional 2,000,000 shares. The 1995 Stock and Incentive Plan (the �1995 Plan�) was terminated with
respect to any future awards under such plan on October 5, 2004 upon stockholder approval of the Award Plans. The
1995 Plan will remain in effect until all awards have been satisfied or expired.

Restricted Stock Awards

Restricted stock awards that have been issued to employees typically vest over a three-year period and over a two-year
period for awards to directors. Restricted stock awards are stock-based awards for which the employee or director
does not have a vested right to the stock (�nonvested�) until the requisite service period has been rendered
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COVANTA HOLDING CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS � (Continued)
or the required financial performance factor has been reached for each pre-determined vesting date. A percentage of
each employee restricted stock awards granted have financial performance factors. Stock-based compensation expense
for each financial performance factor is recognized beginning in the period when management has determined it is
probable the financial performance factor will be achieved for the respective vesting period.

Restricted stock awards to employees are subject to forfeiture if the employee is not employed on the vesting date.
Restricted stock awards issued to directors prior to 2006 were subject to the same forfeiture restrictions as are
applicable to employees. Restricted stock awards issued to directors in 2006 and thereafter are not subject to forfeiture
in the event a director ceases to be a member of the Board of Directors, except in limited circumstances. Prior to
vesting, restricted stock awards have all of the rights of common stock (other than the right to sell or otherwise
transfer). Prior to January 1, 2007, the fair value of restricted stock awards was based on the average of the high and
low market price of our common stock on the day immediately preceding the grant date of the award. In order to align
our valuation with the SEC�s new disclosure requirements, commencing with new restricted stock awards granted in
2007, the fair value of restricted stock awards will be based on the closing market price of our common stock on the
date of the grant for any new awards granted.

On March 19, 2007, we awarded certain employees 348,430 shares of restricted stock under the Employees Plan. The
restricted stock awards will be expensed over the requisite service period, subject to an assumed eight percent
forfeiture rate. The terms of the restricted stock awards include vesting provisions based on two financial performance
factors (applicable to 66% of the award) and continued service over the passage of time (applicable to 34% of the
award). If all performance and service criteria are satisfied, the awards vest over three years, with 116,131 shares
(33.33%) vesting on March 17, 2008, 116,131 shares (33.33%) vesting on March 17, 2009 and the remaining
116,168 shares (33.34%) vesting on March 17, 2010. Compensation expense related to restricted stock awarded after
the 15th of a particular month is recorded commencing in the following month.

On March 19, 2007, we also awarded certain employees 1,819 shares of restricted stock under the Employees Plan.
These awards were made pursuant to an annual program through which we make a limited number of discretionary
awards to eligible employees (our officers and those of our subsidiaries are ineligible) who have offered suggestions
that we believe add value to our business. These restricted stock awards will be expensed over the requisite service
period, subject to an assumed eight percent forfeiture rate. The terms of the restricted stock awards include vesting
provisions based on continued service over the passage of time. If the service criteria is satisfied, the awards vest over
three years, with 606 shares (33.33%) vesting on March 17, 2008, 606 shares (33.33%) vesting on March 17, 2009
and the remaining 607 shares (33.34%) vesting on March 17, 2010. Compensation expense related to restricted stock
awarded after the 15th of a particular month is recorded commencing in the following month.

Changes in nonvested restricted stock awards during the three months ended March 31, 2007 were as follows:

Weighted-
Average

Number of Grant Date
Shares Fair Value

Nonvested as of December 31, 2006 935,533 $ 13.85
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Granted 350,249 22.02
Vested (457,707) 12.04
Forfeited (11,615) 13.68

Nonvested as of March 31, 2007 816,460 18.41

As of March 31, 2007, there was $13.7 million unrecognized stock-based compensation expense related to nonvested
restricted stock awards. This expense is expected to be recognized over a period of up to three years. Total
compensation expense for restricted stock awards was $1.6 million and $0.5 million for the three months ended
March 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.
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Stock Options

We have also awarded stock options to certain employees and directors. Stock options awarded to directors vested
immediately. Stock options awarded to employees typically vested annually over three to five years.

On March 19, 2007, we granted options to purchase an aggregate of 1,755,000 shares of common stock under the
Employees Plan. The options have an exercise price of $22.02 per share and expire 10 years from the date of grant.
The options vest in equal installments over five years commencing on March 17, 2008. Compensation expense related
to options granted after the 15th of a particular month is recorded commencing in the following month.

The fair value of the stock option award granted on March 19, 2007 was calculated using the Black-Scholes option
pricing model with the following assumptions:

Expected
Risk-Free Dividend Volatility

Interest Rate Yield (A) Expected Life

4.58% 0% 31% 8 years

(A) Expected volatility is based on implied volatility.

Option activity for all outstanding options, vested and nonvested, during the three months ended March 31, 2007 was
as follows:

Weighted-
Weighted- Average
Average Remaining Aggregate

Exercise
Contractual

Life
Intrinsic

Value

Shares Price (In years)
(In

thousands)

Outstanding at December 31, 2006 1,029,664 $ 8.22
Granted 1,755,000 22.02
Exercised (15,027) 7.43
Forfeited and cancelled � �

Outstanding at March 31, 2007 2,769,637 16.97 8.9 $ 14,430

2,604,611 16.78 8.8 $ 14,071
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Vested and expected to vest in the future at
March 31, 2007

Exercisable at March 31, 2007 706,811 8.13 6.7 $ 9,932

The aggregate intrinsic value in the table above represents the total pre-tax intrinsic value (the difference between
$22.18 per share, the closing stock price on the last trading day of the first quarter of 2007, and the exercise price,
multiplied by the number of in-the-money options) that would have been received by the option holders had all option
holders exercised their options on the last trading day of the first quarter of 2007 (March 30, 2007). The intrinsic value
changes based on the fair market value of our common stock. Total intrinsic value of options exercised for the three
months ended March 31, 2007 was $0.2 million. The total fair value of options expensed was $0.4 million and
$0.3 million for the three months ended March 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

As of March 31, 2007, there was $17.2 million of total unrecognized compensation expense related to stock options
which is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of five years.
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Note 5.  (Loss) Earnings Per Share

Per share data is based on the weighted average outstanding number of shares of our common stock, par value
$0.10 per share, during the relevant period. Basic (loss) earnings per share are calculated using only the weighted
average number of outstanding shares of common stock. Diluted (loss) earnings per share computations, as calculated
under the treasury stock method, include the weighted average number of shares of additional outstanding common
stock issuable for stock options, restricted stock, convertible debt and rights whether or not currently exercisable.
Diluted (loss) earnings per share for the periods presented do not include securities if their effect was anti-dilutive (in
thousands, except per share amounts).

For the Three Months
Ended March 31,

2007 2006

Net (loss) income $ (17,918) $ 11,418

Basic (loss) earnings per share:
Weighted average basic common shares outstanding 151,476 143,384

Basic (loss) earnings per share $ (0.12) $ 0.08

Diluted (loss) earnings per share:
Weighted average basic common shares outstanding 151,476 143,384
Stock options � 559
Restricted stock � 167
Rights � 1,633

Weighted average diluted common shares outstanding 151,476 145,743

Diluted (loss) earnings per share $ (0.12) $ 0.08

There were 2,769,637 stock options and 816,460 restricted stock awards as of March 31, 2007, which were excluded
from the weighted average diluted common shares calculation for the three months ended March 31, 2007 because
their inclusion would have been anti-dilutive.

Note 6.  Pass Through Costs

Pass through costs are costs for which we receive a direct contractually committed reimbursement from the municipal
client which sponsors an energy-from-waste project. These costs generally include utility charges, insurance
premiums, ash residue transportation and disposal and certain chemical costs. These costs are recorded net of
municipal client reimbursements in our condensed consolidated financial statements. Total pass through costs were
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$15.9 million and $14.8 million for three months ended March 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.
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Note 7.  Revenues and Unbilled Service Receivables

The following table summarizes the components of waste and service revenues for the periods presented below (in
thousands of dollars):

For the Three Months
Ended March 31,

2007 2006

Waste and service revenues unrelated to project debt $ 173,386 $ 164,674
Revenue earned explicitly to service project debt-principal 17,290 17,274
Revenue earned explicitly to service project debt-interest 8,235 9,421

Total waste and service revenues $ 198,911 $ 191,369

Unbilled service receivables include fees related to the principal portion of debt service earned to service project debt
principal where such fees are expressly included as a component of the service fee paid by the municipality pursuant
to applicable energy-from-waste service agreements. Regardless of the timing of amounts paid by municipalities
relating to project debt principal, we record service revenue with respect to this principal component on a levelized
basis over the term of the service agreement. Long-term unbilled service receivables related to energy-from-waste
operations are recorded at their discounted amounts.

Electricity and steam sales included lease income from our international business of $30.2 million and $27.4 million
for the three months ended March 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Note 8.  Equity in Net Income from Unconsolidated Investments

Equity in net income from unconsolidated investments was $5.1 million and $6.8 million for the three months ended
March 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Equity in net income from unconsolidated investments primarily relates to our
26% investment in Quezon Power, Inc. (�Quezon�) in the Philippines. For the six years prior to May 2006, Quezon had
benefited from Philippine tax regulations which were designed to promote investments in certain industries (including
power generation). Equity in net income from unconsolidated investments for the three months ended March 31, 2007
included approximately $2.0 million of increased tax expense for Quezon related to the conclusion of this six-year
income tax holiday in May 2006.

The unaudited results of operations from Quezon were as follows (in thousands of dollars):

Quezon
For the Three Months

Ended March 31,
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2007 2006

Operating revenues $ 70,233 $ 67,906
Operating income 32,563 28,558
Net income 12,449 19,980
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Note 9.  Intangible Assets and Goodwill

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets consisted of the following (in thousands of dollars):

As of March 31, 2007 As of December 31, 2006
Gross Gross

Remaining Carrying Accumulated Carrying Accumulated
Useful Life Amount Amortization Net Amount Amortization Net

Waste and energy
contracts 2 - 22 years $ 388,378 $ 103,138 $ 285,240 $ 388,378 $ 91,850 $ 296,528
Lease interest and
other 12 - 23 years 72,169 5,313 66,856 72,154 4,555 67,599
Landfill 7 years 17,985 3,270 14,715 17,985 3,066 14,919

Total amortizable
intangible assets $ 478,532 $ 111,721 $ 366,811 $ 478,517 $ 99,471 $ 379,046
Other intangibles Indefinite 4,528 � 4,528 4,528 � 4,528

Intangible assets,
net $ 483,060 $ 111,721 $ 371,339 $ 483,045 $ 99,471 $ 383,574

Amortization expense related to waste and energy contracts and other intangible assets was $11.5 million and
$12.1 million for the three months ended March 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The lease interest asset is amortized
to rent expense in plant operating expenses and was $0.8 million for each of the three months ended March 31, 2007
and 2006.

The following table details the amount of the actual/estimated amortization expense associated with intangible assets
as of March 31, 2007 included or expected to be included in our statement of operations for each of the years indicated
(in thousands of dollars):

Waste and Landfill, Lease

Energy
Interest and

Other
Contracts Contracts Totals

Three Months ended March 31, 2007 $ 11,288 $ 962 $ 12,250
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Remainder of 2007 $ 33,566 $ 4,190 $ 37,756
2008 43,180 5,148 48,328
2009 39,635 5,148 44,783
2010 27,317 5,148 32,465
2011 24,228 5,148 29,376
Thereafter 117,314 56,789 174,103

Total $ 285,240 $ 81,571 $ 366,811

Goodwill

Goodwill was $91.3 million as of both March 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006. Goodwill represents the total
consideration paid in excess of the fair value of the net tangible and identifiable intangible assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed in the ARC Holdings acquisition in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 142, �Goodwill
and Other Intangible Assets� (�SFAS 142�). Goodwill has an indefinite life and is not amortized but is reviewed annually
for impairment under the provisions of SFAS 142. Goodwill is not deductible for federal income tax purposes.
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Note 10.  Other Noncurrent Liabilities

Other noncurrent liabilities consisted of the following (in thousands of dollars):

As of
March 31, December 31,

2007 2006

Waste and service contracts $   132,576 $   135,607
Tax liabilities for uncertain tax positions 64,927 26,622
Interest rate swap 9,705 9,855
Benefit obligations 38,878 38,979
Asset retirement obligations 23,361 23,740
Insurance loss and loss adjustment reserves 36,526 38,020
Service contract obligations 9,903 9,607
Other 24,133 23,148

$ 340,009 $ 305,578

The following table details the amount of the actual/estimated amortization contra-expense associated with the below
market waste and service contracts liability as of March 31, 2007 included or expected to be included in our statement
of operations for each of the years indicated (in thousands of dollars):

Waste and
Service

Contracts

Three Months ended March 31, 2007 $ 2,987

Remainder of 2007 $ 8,956
2008 11,931
2009 11,982
2010 12,094
2011 12,153
Thereafter 75,460

Total $ 132,576

Note 11.  Income Taxes
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We record our interim tax provision based upon our estimated annual effective tax rate and account for the tax effects
of discrete events in the period in which they occur. We currently estimate our annual effective tax rate for the year
ended December 31, 2007 to be approximately 45%. We review the annual effective tax rate on a quarterly basis as
projections are revised.

We file a federal consolidated income tax return with our eligible subsidiaries. Covanta Lake II, Inc. files outside of
the consolidated return group. Our federal consolidated income tax return also includes the taxable results of certain
grantor trusts described below.

We adopted the provisions of FASB Interpretation No. 48, �Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an
interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109,� (�FIN 48�) effective January 1, 2007. The cumulative effect of applying the
provisions of this interpretation was a $2.8 million decrease to our opening balance retained earnings in 2007, which
was comprised of an increase of $6.1 million to the liability for uncertain tax positions, a $16.4 million increase to
deferred tax assets, a $13.1 million decrease to property, plant and equipment and a reclassification of $32.7 million
between deferred tax liabilities and the liability for uncertain tax positions. The liability for uncertain tax positions,
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exclusive of interest and penalties, was $57.2 million as of March 31 and January 1, 2007, respectively. No additional
liabilities were recorded for uncertain tax positions during the three months ended March 31, 2007.

There are no uncertain tax positions associated with unrecognized tax benefits at this time, and therefore, we do not
expect a material future impact to our effective tax rate for this matter.

We continue to reflect interest accrued on uncertain tax positions and penalties as part of the tax provision under
FIN 48. For the quarters ended March 31, 2007 and 2006, we recognized $0.4 million and zero, respectively of
interest and penalties on uncertain tax positions. As of March 31, and January 1, 2007, we had accrued interest and
penalties associated with uncertain tax positions of $7.7 million and $7.3 million, respectively.

As issues are examined by the Internal Revenue Service (�IRS�) and state auditors, we may decide to adjust the existing
FIN 48 liability for issues that were not deemed an exposure at the time we adopted FIN 48. Accordingly, we will
continue to monitor the results of these audits and adjust the liability as needed.

State income tax returns are generally subject to examination for a period of three to five years after the filing of the
respective return. The state impact of any federal changes remains subject to examination by various states for a
period of up to one year after formal notification to the states. We have various state income tax returns in the process
of examination, administrative appeals or litigation.

Federal income tax returns for Covanta Energy are closed for the years through 2002. However, to the extent NOLs
are utilized from earlier years, this will allow the IRS to re-examine closed years. ARC Holdings� tax returns are open
for federal audit for the tax return years of 2001 and forward, and is currently the subject of an IRS examination. This
examination is related to ARC Holdings� refund requests related to NOL carryback claims from tax years prior to our
acquisition of ARC Holdings in 2005 that require Joint Committee approval.

Our NOLs predominantly arose from our predecessor insurance entities (which were subsidiaries of our predecessor,
formerly named Mission Insurance Group, Inc., �Mission�). These Mission insurance entities have been in state
insolvency proceedings in California and Missouri since the late 1980�s. The amount of NOLs available to us will be
reduced by any taxable income generated by current members of our consolidated tax group, which include grantor
trusts associated with the Mission insurance entities.

In January 2006, we executed agreements with the California Commissioner of Insurance (the �California
Commissioner�), who administers the majority of the grantor trusts, regarding the final administration and conclusion
of such trusts. The agreements, which were approved by the California state court overseeing the Mission insolvency
proceedings (the �Mission Court�), settle matters that had been in dispute regarding the historic rights and obligations
relating to the conclusion of the grantor trusts.

We have discussed with the Director of the Division of Insurance of the State of Missouri (the �Missouri Director�),
who administers the balance of the grantor trusts relating to the Mission Insurance entities, similar arrangements to
claimants of the Missouri grantor trusts. Given the claims activity relating to the Missouri grantor trusts, and the lack
of disputed matters with the Missouri Director, we do not expect to enter into additional or amended contractual
arrangements with the Missouri Director with respect to the final administration of the Missouri grantor trusts.

Edgar Filing: COVANTA HOLDING CORP - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 33



While we cannot predict with certainty what amounts, if any, may be includable in taxable income as a result of the
final administration of these grantor trusts, we believe that neither arrangements with the California Commissioner nor
the final administration by the Missouri Director will result in a material reduction in available NOLs.

We had consolidated federal NOLs estimated to be approximately $410 million for federal income tax purposes as of
December 31, 2006. The NOLs will expire in various amounts from December 31, 2007 through December 31, 2025,
if not used. In addition to the consolidated federal NOLs, as of December 31, 2006, we had additional federal credits
and loss carryforwards of $46 million and state credits and loss carryforwards of $13 million that will expire between
2007 and 2026. These deferred tax assets are offset by a valuation allowance of $37 million.
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Our provision for income taxes in the condensed consolidated statements of operations also includes certain state and
other taxes. Tax filings for these jurisdictions do not consolidate the activity of the grantor trusts referred to above and
in certain states reflect preparation on a separate-company basis. For further information, refer to Note 21. Income
Taxes of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2006.

Note 12.  Changes in Capitalization

2007 Recapitalization Plan

On January 19, 2007, we announced a comprehensive recapitalization plan utilizing a series of equity and debt
financings. Subsequent to this announcement, we completed the following transactions:

� the refinancing of Covanta Energy�s debt facilities with new Covanta Energy debt facilities, comprised of a
$300 million revolving credit facility, a $320 million funded letter of credit facility, and a $650 million term
loan (collectively referred to as the �New Credit Facilities�);

� an underwritten public offering of 6.118 million shares of our common stock, in which we received proceeds of
approximately $136.6 million, net of underwriting discounts and commissions;

� an underwritten public offering of approximately $373.8 million aggregate principal amount of 1.00% Senior
Convertible Debentures due 2027 (the �Debentures�) issued by us, from which we received proceeds of
approximately $364.4 million, net of underwriting discounts and commissions; and

� the repayment, by means of a tender offer, of approximately $604.4 million in aggregate principal amount of
outstanding notes previously issued by certain intermediate subsidiaries of Covanta Energy.

We completed our public offerings of common stock and Debentures, including over-allotment options exercised by
underwriters, on January 31, 2007 and February 6, 2007, and we closed on the New Credit Facilities on February 9,
2007. We completed our tender offer for approximately $604.4 million in aggregate principal amount of outstanding
notes on February 22, 2007. As a result of the recapitalization plan in the first quarter of 2007, we recognized a loss on
extinguishment of debt of approximately $32.0 million, pre-tax, which is comprised of the write-down of deferred
financing costs, tender premiums paid for the intermediate subsidiary debt, and a call premium paid in connection
with previously existing financing arrangements. These amounts were partially offset by the write-down of
unamortized premiums relating to the intermediate subsidiary debt and a gain associated with the settlement of our
interest rate swap agreements. The following discussion details the material terms of each of these transactions.

Material Terms of New Credit Facilities

The New Credit Facilities are comprised of:

� a $300 million revolving loan facility due 2013, which includes a $200 million sub-facility for the issuance of
letters of credit (the �Revolving Loan Facility�);
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� a $320 million funded letter of credit facility, due 2014 (the �Funded L/C Facility�); and

� a $650 million term loan facility, due 2014 (the �Term Loan Facility�).
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Amortization Terms

The New Credit Facilities include mandatory annual amortization of the Term Loan Facility to be paid in quarterly
installments beginning June 30, 2007, through the date of maturity as follows (in thousands of dollars):

Annual
Remaining

Amortization

2007 $ 4,875
2008 6,500
2009 6,500
2010 6,500
2011 6,500
2012 6,500
2013 6,500
2014 606,125

Total $ 650,000

Under the New Credit Facilities, Covanta Energy is obligated to apply a portion of excess cash from operations on an
annual basis (calculated pursuant to the credit agreement), as well as specified other sources, to repay borrowings
under the Term Loan Facility. The portion of excess cash to be used for this purpose is 50%, 25%, or 0%, based on
measurement of the leverage ratio described below.

Interest and Fee Terms

Loans under the New Credit Facilities are designated, at our election, as Eurodollar rate loans or base rate loans.
Eurodollar loans bear interest at a reserve adjusted British Bankers Association Interest Settlement Rate, commonly
referred to as �LIBOR,� for deposits in dollars plus a borrowing margin. Interest on Eurodollar rate loans is payable at
the end of the applicable interest period of one, two, three or six months (and at the end of every three months in the
case of six month Eurodollar loans). Base rate loans bear interest at (a) a rate per annum equal to the greater of (1) the
�prime rate� designated in the relevant facility or (2) the federal funds rate plus 0.5% per annum, plus (b) a borrowing
margin.

Letters of credit that may be issued in the future under the Revolving Loan Facility will accrue fees at the then
effective borrowing margins on Eurodollar rate loans, plus a fee on each issued letter of credit payable to the issuing
bank. Letter of credit availability under the Funded L/C Facility accrues fees (whether or not letters of credit are
issued thereunder) at the then effective borrowing margin for Eurodollar rate loans times the total availability under
letters of credit (whether or not then utilized), plus a fee on each issued letter of credit payable to the issuing bank. In
addition, Covanta Energy has agreed to pay to the participants under the Funded L/C Facility a fee equal to 0.10%
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times the average daily amount of the credit linked deposit paid by such participants for their participation under the
Funded L/C Facility.

Guarantees and Securitization

The New Credit Facilities are guaranteed by us and by certain Covanta Energy subsidiaries. Covanta Energy and
certain of its subsidiaries that are party to the New Credit Facilities agreed to secure all of Covanta Energy�s
obligations under the New Credit Facilities by granting, for the benefit of secured parties, a first priority lien on
substantially all of their assets, to the extent permitted by existing contractual obligations, a pledge of substantially all
of the capital stock of each of Covanta Energy�s domestic subsidiaries owned by it and 65% of substantially all the
capital stock of each of Covanta Energy�s foreign subsidiaries directly owned by it, in each case to the extent not
otherwise pledged.
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Debt Covenants and Defaults

The loan documentation under the New Credit Facilities contains customary affirmative and negative covenants and
financial covenants. During the term of the New Credit Facilities, we expect that the negative covenants will place
limitations on Covanta Energy, but be materially less restrictive than the restrictions in effect prior to February 9,
2007.

Material Terms of the Debentures

On January 31, 2007, we also completed an underwritten public offering of $373.8 million of aggregate principal
amount of debentures. This offering included Debentures sold pursuant to an over-allotment option which was
exercised by the underwriters. The Debentures constitute our general unsecured senior obligations and will rank
equally in right of payment with any future senior unsecured indebtedness. The Debentures are effectively junior to
our existing and future secured indebtedness, including the New Credit Facilities, to the extent of the value of the
assets securing such indebtedness. The Debentures are not guaranteed by any of our subsidiaries and are effectively
subordinated to all existing and future indebtedness and liabilities (including trade payables) of our subsidiaries.

The Debentures bear interest at a rate of 1.00% per year, payable semi-annually in arrears, on February 1 and
August 1 of each year, commencing on August 1, 2007 and will mature on February 1, 2027. Beginning with the
six-month interest period commencing February 1, 2012, we will pay contingent interest on the Debentures during any
six-month interest period in which the trading price of the Debentures measured over a specified number of trading
days is 120% or more of the principal amount of the Debentures. When applicable, the contingent interest payable per
$1,000 principal amount of Debentures will equal 0.25% of the average trading price of $1,000 principal amount of
Debentures during the five trading days ending on the second trading day immediately preceding the first day of the
applicable six-month interest period. The contingent interest payment provision has been accounted for as an
embedded derivative instrument. The first contingent cash interest payment period does not commence until
February 1, 2012, and as such, the fair market value for the embedded derivative was zero as of March 31, 2007.

Under limited circumstances, the Debentures are convertible by the holders thereof, at any time, into cash and shares
of our common stock, if any, initially based on a conversion rate of 35.4610 shares of our common stock per $1,000
principal amount of Debentures, (which represents an initial conversion price of approximately $28.20 per share). The
terms of the Debentures require that under certain circumstances, such as an acquisition of us by a third party, the
payment by us of a cash dividend on our common stock, or where a cash tender offer is made for our common stock,
we are obligated to adjust the conversion rate applicable to the Debentures. This adjustment requirement constitutes a
�contingent beneficial conversion feature� that is part of the Debentures. If such an adjustment were to occur, (i) the
amount of the contingent beneficial feature would be bifurcated from the Debentures, (ii) the liability recorded in our
financial statements with respect to the Debentures would be reduced by the amount bifurcated, and (iii) the amount
bifurcated would be recorded as a charge to interest expense and accreted to the Debenture liability over the remaining
term of Debentures, or the conversion date of the Debentures, if earlier.

At our option, the Debentures are subject to redemption at any time on or after February 1, 2012, in whole or in part,
at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the Debentures being redeemed, plus accrued and
unpaid interest (including contingent interest, if any). In addition, holders may require us to repurchase their
Debentures on February 1, 2012, February 1, 2017 and February 1, 2022, in whole or in part, for cash at a repurchase
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price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the Debentures being repurchased, plus accrued and unpaid interest
(including contingent interest, if any). The Debentures are also subject to repurchase by us, at the holder�s option, if a
fundamental change occurs, for cash at a repurchase price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the Debentures,
plus accrued and unpaid interest (including contingent interest, if any).
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Intermediate Subsidiary Debt Tender Offer

On January 23, 2007, we commenced cash tender offers for (a) any and all of the outstanding 81/2% Senior Secured
Notes due 2010 (the �MSW I Notes�) issued by MSW Energy Holdings LLC and its wholly owned subsidiary, MSW
Energy Finance Co., Inc. (collectively referred to as �MSW I�), (b) any and all of the outstanding 73/8% Senior Secured
Notes due 2010 (the �MSW II Notes�) issued by MSW Energy Holdings II LLC and its wholly owned subsidiary, MSW
Energy Finance Co. II, Inc. (collectively referred to as �MSW II�) and (c) any and all of the outstanding 6.26% Senior
Notes due 2015 (the �ARC Notes�) of Covanta ARC LLC.

In connection with each of the tender offers, we solicited the consents of the holders of each of the Notes to certain
proposed amendments to the indentures governing such Notes. The primary purpose of the solicitations and the
proposed amendments was to eliminate from the indentures substantially all of the restrictive covenants and certain
events of default provisions contained therein.

Under the terms of the tender offer for the MSW I Notes and MSW II Notes, we offered to purchase the outstanding
MSW I Notes and MSW II Notes for a total consideration, for each $1,000 principal amount of MSW I Notes and
MSW II Notes validly tendered and accepted for payment, equal to $1,096.46 and $1,079.92, respectively, which
included a consent fee of $30 for each $1,000 principal amount of MSW I Notes and MSW II Notes validly tendered
and accepted for payment.

Under the terms of the tender offer for the ARC Notes, we offered to purchase the outstanding ARC Notes for total
consideration, for each $1,000 original principal amount of ARC Notes validly tendered and accepted for payment,
equal to $729.82, which included a consent fee of $30 for each $1,000 principal amount of ARC Notes validly
tendered and accepted for payment.

The solicitations for each of the Notes expired on February 5, 2007. At that time, we had received consents from the
requisite number of holders of each of the outstanding MSW I Notes, MSW II Notes and ARC Notes, to amend the
applicable indentures governing each of the Notes to eliminate substantially all of the restrictive covenants and certain
events of default provisions. Each of the issuers entered into a supplemental indenture with the respective trustee for
the applicable Notes. The supplemental indentures became operative on February 22, 2007.

As of March 31, 2007, the remaining outstanding debt for the MSW I Notes, MSW II Notes and the ARC Notes was
$5.6 million, $0.5 million and $1.4 million, respectively. On March 16, 2007, we issued a Notice of Redemption for
the remaining ARC Notes. All outstanding ARC Notes were redeemed on April 16, 2007 at a total redemption price of
$743.50 per $1,000 in original principal amount of the ARC Notes, which includes principal outstanding, premium
and accrued interest up to the redemption date. We expect to redeem, the MSW I Notes and MSW II Notes during the
third quarter of 2007. MSW I and MSW II may, at their respective options, redeem, and currently intend to redeem the
MSW I Notes and MSW II Notes, respectively, in whole or in part, at $1,042.50 and $1,036.88, respectively, per
$1,000 principal amount (plus accrued and unpaid interest to the date of redemption) during the third quarter of 2007.
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Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt is comprised of credit facilities and intermediate debt as follows (in thousands of dollars):

As of
March 31, December 31,

2007 2006

Covanta
1.00% Senior Convertible Debentures due 2027 $ 373,750 $ �
Covanta Energy Senior Secured Credit Facilities
First Lien Term Loan Facility � 368,389
Second Lien Term Loan Facility � 260,000
Term Loan Facility due 2014 650,000 �

650,000 628,389

Covanta Energy Intermediate Subsidiary Debt
6.26% Senior ARC Notes due 2015 1,396 192,000
8.50% Senior Secured MSW Notes due 2010 5,610 195,785
7.375% Senior Secured MSW II Notes due 2010 500 224,100

7,506 611,885
Unamortized debt premium 276 19,748

Total intermediate subsidiary debt 7,782 631,633

Other Covanta Energy long-term debt 53 101

Total 1,031,585 1,260,123
Less: current portion (includes $276 and $4,732 of unamortized premium) (14,324) (36,434)

Total long-term debt $ 1,017,261 $ 1,223,689

Short-Term Liquidity

As of March 31, 2007, Covanta Energy had available credit for liquidity as follows (in thousands of dollars):

Total Available
Available As of
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Under Facility Maturing
March 31,

2007

Revolving Loan Facility(1) $ 300,000 2013 $ 300,000
Funded L/C Facility $ 320,000 2014 $ 3,156

(1) Up to $200 million of which may be utilized for letters of credit.

As of March 31, 2007, Covanta Energy had not drawn any loans from the Revolving Loan Facility. As of March 31,
2007, Covanta Energy had approximately $316.8 million outstanding letters of credit under the Funded L/C Facility.

Stockholders� Equity

Material Terms of Equity Offering

On January 31, 2007, we completed an underwritten public offering of 5.32 million shares of our common stock. The
shares were sold to the public at a price of $23.50 per share. We granted the underwriters an option to
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purchase up to an additional 798,000 shares of common stock at $22.325 per share for a period of 30 days beginning
on and including the date of original issuance of the shares in connection with this offering, solely to cover
over-allotments. The option was exercised and such additional shares were sold on February 6, 2007. Proceeds
received in these offerings were approximately $136.6 million, net of underwriting discounts and commissions.

Other

On March 19, 2007, we awarded certain employees 350,249 shares of restricted stock and we granted options to
purchase an aggregate of 1,755,000 shares of common stock both under the Employees Plan. See Note 4. Stock-Based
Compensation.

We adopted the provisions of FIN 48 effective January 1, 2007. The cumulative effect of applying the provisions of
this interpretation was a $2.8 million decrease to our opening balance retained earnings in 2007. See Note 11. Income
Taxes for additional information.

On February 24, 2006, we completed a rights offering in which 5,696,911 shares were issued in consideration for
$20.8 million in gross proceeds. See Note 17. Related-Party Transactions.

Note 13.  Business Segments

We develop, own and operate infrastructure for the conversion of energy-from-waste, waste disposal and renewable
energy production in the United States and abroad. We also engage in the independent power production business
outside the United States. Given our increased focus on developing our international waste and energy business, we
have decided, during this quarter, to segregate what we previously reported as our Waste and Energy Services
segment into two new segments: Domestic and International. Our remaining operations, which we previously reported
as our Other Services segment, which was comprised of the holding company and insurance subsidiaries� operations,
does not meet the quantitative thresholds which require separate disclosure as a reportable segment. Therefore, we
currently have two reportable segments, Domestic and International, which are comprised of our domestic and
international waste and energy services operations, respectively.
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Results of our reportable segments are shown below (in thousands of dollars):

For the
Three Months Ended

March 31,
2007 2006

Operating Revenues:
Domestic $ 287,755 $ 262,571
International 39,801 38,845
All other(1) 2,653 3,940

Total operating revenues $ 330,209 $ 305,356

Operating Income (Loss):
Domestic $ 5,235 $ 29,789
International 3,503 5,528
All other(1) (458) 201

Total operating income 8,280 35,518
Other Income (Expense):
Investment income 5,184 2,403
Interest expense (21,260) (28,483)
Loss on extinguishment of debt(2) (32,006) �

(Loss) income before income tax benefit (expense), minority interests and equity in net
income from unconsolidated investments $ (39,802) $ 9,438

(1) All other is comprised of our insurance subsidiaries� operations.

(2) See Note 12. Changes in Capitalization for additional information.
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Note 14.  Benefit Obligations

The components of net periodic benefit costs are as follows (in thousands of dollars):

Other Post-
Pension Retirement
Benefits Benefits

For the Three For the Three
Months Ended Months Ended

March 31, March 31,
2007 2006 2007 2006

Service cost $ � $ � $ � $ �
Interest cost 1,146 1,075 192 154
Expected return on plan assets (1,108) (922) � �
Amortization of actuarial (gain) loss � (16) 26 �

Net periodic benefit cost $ 38 $ 137 $ 218 $ 154

Effective January 1, 2006, in connection with freezing our defined benefit pension plans for domestic employees, we
enhanced the Covanta Energy Savings Plan (the defined contribution plan for domestic employees) by increasing our
contribution toward the savings plan. The costs related to the savings plan were $4.0 million and $3.2 million for the
three months ended March 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Note 15.  Financial Instruments

Interest Rate Swaps

Covanta Energy was required, under financing arrangements in effect since June 24, 2005, to enter into hedging
arrangements with respect to a portion of its exposure to interest rate changes with respect to its borrowing under the
Credit Facilities. On July 8, 2005, Covanta Energy entered into two separate pay fixed, receive floating interest rate
swap agreements with a total notional amount of $300 million. On March 21, 2006, we entered into one additional pay
fixed, receive floating interest rate swap agreement with a notional amount of $37.5 million. On December 27, 2006,
the notional amount of the original interest rate swap agreements were reduced to $250 million from $300 million.
These interest rate swaps were designated as cash flow hedges in accordance with SFAS No. 133 �Accounting for
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.� Accordingly, unrealized gains or losses were deferred in other
comprehensive income until the hedged cash flows affect earnings. The impact of the interest rate swaps was a
decrease to interest expense for the three months ended March 31, 2006 of $0.2 million. In connection with the
refinancing of Covanta Energy�s debt facilities, the interest rate swap agreements described above were settled on
February 9, 2007. We recognized a gain associated with the settlement of our interest rate swap agreements of
$3.4 million, pre-tax. The New Credit Facilities do not require us to enter into interest rate swap agreements. For
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additional information related to the New Credit Facilities, see Note 12. Changes in Capitalization.

Note 16.  Commitments and Contingencies

We and/or our subsidiaries are party to a number of claims, lawsuits and pending actions, most of which are routine
and all of which are incidental to our business. We assess the likelihood of potential losses on an ongoing basis and
when losses are considered probable and reasonably estimable, record as a loss an estimate of the ultimate outcome. If
we can only estimate the range of a possible loss, an amount representing the low end of the range of possible
outcomes is recorded. The final consequences of these proceedings are not presently determinable with certainty.
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Environmental Matters

Covanta Energy�s operations are subject to environmental regulatory laws and environmental remediation laws.
Although Covanta Energy�s operations are occasionally subject to proceedings and orders pertaining to emissions into
the environment and other environmental violations, which may result in fines, penalties, damages or other sanctions,
we believe that Covanta Energy is in substantial compliance with existing environmental laws and regulations.

Covanta Energy may be identified, along with other entities, as being among parties potentially responsible for
contribution to costs associated with the correction and remediation of environmental conditions at disposal sites
subject to federal and/or analogous state laws. In certain instances, Covanta Energy may be exposed to joint and
several liabilities for remedial action or damages. Covanta Energy�s ultimate liability in connection with such
environmental claims will depend on many factors, including its volumetric share of waste, the total cost of
remediation, and the financial viability of other companies that also sent waste to a given site and, in the case of
divested operations, its contractual arrangement with the purchaser of such operations. Generally, such claims arising
prior to April 1, 2002 were resolved in and discharged by Covanta Energy�s Chapter 11 cases.

The potential costs related to the matters described below and the possible impact on future operations are uncertain
due in part to the complexity of governmental laws and regulations and their interpretations, the varying costs and
effectiveness of cleanup technologies, the uncertain level of insurance or other types of recovery and the questionable
level of Covanta Energy�s responsibility. Although the ultimate outcome and expense of any litigation, including
environmental remediation, is uncertain, Covanta Energy believes that the following proceedings will not have a
material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position or results of operations.

In June 2001, the Environmental Protection Agency (�EPA�) named Covanta Haverhill, Inc. (�Haverhill�), as a potentially
responsible party (�PRP�) at the Beede Waste Oil Superfund Site, Plaistow, New Hampshire (�Beede site�). On
December 15, 2006, Haverhill together with numerous other PRPs, signed the Beede Waste Oil Superfund Site
RD/RA Consent Decree with respect to remediation of the Beede site. The Consent Decree becomes effective upon
approval and entry by the U.S. District Court in New Hampshire. We currently believe that based on the amount of
waste oil Haverhill is alleged to have sent to the Beede site in comparison to other similarly-situated settling PRPs, its
ultimate liability will not be material to its financial position and results of operations although it is not possible at this
time to predict that outcome with certainty.

In August 2004, EPA notified Covanta Essex Company (�Essex�) that it was potentially liable for Superfund response
actions in the Lower Passaic River Study Area, referred to as �LPRSA,� a 17 mile stretch of river in northern New
Jersey. Essex is one of approximately 70 PRPs named thus far that have joined the LPRSA PRP group. In 2005, Essex
entered into an arrangement with EPA and the PRP group to settle its potential share of liability for $2.8 million in
past costs incurred by EPA, and to contribute $0.25 million towards the $10 million then estimated by EPA as the cost
of the Passaic River Study (�Study�). It is anticipated that additional contributions to the cost of the Study will be
required of PRP�s, including Essex, as the Study proceeds through its predicted completion in 2011. Considering the
history of industrial and other discharges into the LPRSA from other sources, including named PRPs, Essex believes
any releases to the LPRSA from its facility to be de minimis in comparison; however, it is not possible at this time to
predict that outcome with certainty or to estimate Essex�s ultimate liability in the matter, including for natural resource
damages.
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Other Matters

Other commitments as of March 31, 2007 were as follows (in thousands of dollars):

Commitments Expiring by Period
Less Than More Than

Total One Year One Year

Letters of credit $ 322,532 $ 4,401 $ 318,131
Surety bonds 61,751 � 61,751

Total other commitments � net $ 384,283 $ 4,401 $ 379,882

The letters of credit were issued pursuant to the facilities to secure our performance under various contractual
undertakings related to our domestic and international projects, or to secure obligations under our insurance program.
Each letter of credit relating to a project is required to be maintained in effect for the period specified in related project
contracts, and generally may be drawn if it is not renewed prior to expiration of that period.

As of March 31, 2007, Covanta Energy had approximately $3.2 million in available capacity for additional letters of
credit under its Funded L/C Facility and $200 million available capacity for letters of credit under its Revolving
Loan Facility. We believe that we will be able to fully perform under our contracts to which these existing letters of
credit relate, and that it is unlikely that letters of credit would be drawn because of a default of our performance
obligations. If any of these letters of credit were to be drawn under the current debt facilities, the amount drawn would
be immediately repayable to the issuing bank. If we were unable to immediately repay such amounts drawn under
these letters of credit, unreimbursed amounts would be treated under the New Credit Facilities as additional term loans
issued under the Term Loan Facility.

The surety bonds listed on the table above relate primarily to performance obligations ($52.8 million) and support for
closure obligations of various energy projects when such projects cease operating ($9.0 million). Were these bonds to
be drawn upon, Covanta Energy would have a contractual obligation to indemnify the surety company.

We have certain contingent obligations related to the Debentures. These are:

� holders may require us to repurchase their Debentures on February 1, 2012, February 1, 2017 and February 1,
2022;

� holders may require us to repurchase their Debentures, if a fundamental change occurs; and
� holders may exercise their conversion rights upon the occurrence of certain events, which would require us to

pay the conversion settlement amount in cash and/or our common stock.

See Note 12. Changes in Capitalization � 2007 Recapitalization Plan � Material Terms of the Debentures for specific
criteria related to contingent interest, conversion or redemption features of the Debentures.
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Covanta Energy and certain of its subsidiaries have issued or are party to performance guarantees and related
contractual support obligations undertaken mainly pursuant to agreements to construct and operate certain
energy-from-waste facilities and a water facility. With respect to its domestic businesses, Covanta Energy and certain
of its subsidiaries have issued guarantees to municipal clients and other parties that Covanta Energy�s subsidiaries will
perform in accordance with contractual terms, including, where required, the payment of damages or other
obligations. Such contractual damages or other obligations could be material, and in circumstances where one or more
subsidiary�s contract has been terminated for its default, such damages could include amounts sufficient to repay
project debt. For facilities owned by municipal clients and operated by Covanta Energy, Covanta Energy�s potential
maximum liability as of March 31, 2007 associated with the repayment of the municipalities� project debt on such
facilities was approximately $1 billion. This amount was not recorded as a liability in Covanta Energy�s consolidated
balance sheet as of March 31, 2007 as Covanta Energy believes that it had not incurred such liability at the date of the
financial statements. Additionally, damages payable under such guarantees on Covanta Energy-
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owned energy-from-waste facilities could expose Covanta Energy to recourse liability on project debt. Covanta
Energy also believes that it has not incurred such damages at the date of the financial statements. If Covanta Energy is
asked to perform under one or more of such guarantees, its liability for damages upon contract termination would be
reduced by funds held in trust and proceeds from sales of the facilities securing the project debt, which is presently not
estimable.

With respect to our international businesses, Covanta Energy and certain of its subsidiaries have issued guarantees on
behalf of our international operating subsidiaries with respect to contractual obligations to operate certain international
power projects and one energy-from-waste project. The potential damages owed under such arrangements for
international projects may be material.

Depending upon the circumstances giving rise to such domestic and international damages, the contractual terms of
the applicable contracts, and the contract counterparty�s choice of remedy at the time a claim against a guarantee is
made, the amounts owed pursuant to one or more of such guarantees could be greater than Covanta Energy�s
then-available sources of funds. To date, Covanta Energy has not incurred material liabilities under its guarantees,
either on domestic or international projects.

On March 31, 2007, our SEMASS energy-from-waste facility located in Rochester, Massachusetts experienced a fire
in the front-end receiving portion of the facility. Damage was extensive to this portion of the facility and operations at
the facility were suspended completely for approximately 20 days. Partial operations have resumed, and full-scale
operations are expected to resume during May 2007. As a result of this loss, we recorded an asset impairment of
$18.3 million, pre-tax, in the first quarter of 2007, which represents a preliminary estimate of the net book value of the
assets destroyed. Based upon additional investigation and analysis to be conducted, we may increase the impairment
recorded.

The cost of repair or replacement, and business interruption losses, are insured under the terms of applicable insurance
policies, subject to deductibles. We cannot predict the timing of when we would receive the proceeds under such
policies. As insurance proceeds are received, they will be recorded as a reduction to the loss related to the write-down
of assets or a reduction to operating expenses. We expect the cost of repair or replacement and business interruption
losses we do not recover, representing deductibles under such policies, will not be material.

Note 17.  Related-Party Transactions

As described in Note 8. Equity in Net Income from Unconsolidated Investments, Covanta Energy holds a 26%
investment in Quezon. Covanta Energy and Quezon are both party to an agreement in which Covanta Energy assumed
responsibility for the operation and maintenance of Quezon�s coal-fired electricity generation facility. For the three
months ended March 31, 2007 and 2006, Covanta Energy collected $7.4 million and $9.0 million, respectively, for the
operation and maintenance of the facility. As of March 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006, the net amount due to
Quezon was $0.5 million and $2.2 million, respectively.

On February 24, 2006, we completed a rights offering to the holders of Covanta Energy�s 9.25% debentures prior to its
emergence from bankruptcy proceedings, in which 5,696,911 shares were issued in consideration for $20.8 million in
gross proceeds, including 633,380 shares purchased by D. E. Shaw Laminar Portfolios, L.L.C. (�Laminar�), one of our
largest stockholders, pursuant to the exercise of rights held by Laminar as a holder of such 9.25% debentures.
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT�S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS
OF OPERATIONS

The terms �we,� �our,� �ours,� �us,� �Covanta� and �Company� refer to Covanta Holding Corporation and its subsidiaries; the
term �Covanta Energy� refers to our subsidiary Covanta Energy Corporation and its subsidiaries; the term �ARC
Holdings� refers to our subsidiary Covanta ARC Holdings, Inc. and its subsidiaries; the term �CPIH� refers to our
subsidiary Covanta Power International Holdings, Inc.; and the term �NAICC� refers to our subsidiary National
American Insurance Company of California and its subsidiaries.

The following discussion addresses our financial condition as of March 31, 2007 and our results of operations for the
three months ended March 31, 2007, compared with the same periods last year. It should be read in conjunction with
our Audited Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto for the year ended December 31, 2006 and
Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations included in our Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006 to which the reader is directed for additional information.

The preparation of interim financial statements necessarily relies heavily on estimates. Due to the use of estimates and
certain other factors, such as the seasonal nature of our waste and energy business, as well as competitive and other
market conditions, we do not believe that interim results of operations are indicative of full year results of operations.
The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts and classification of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ materially from those estimates.

OVERVIEW

We are organized as a holding company and conduct all of our operations through subsidiaries which are engaged in
the businesses of waste and energy services, and insurance services. Our predominant business is the waste and energy
services business. We are a leading developer, owner and operator of infrastructure for the conversion of
energy-from-waste, waste disposal and renewable energy production businesses in the United States and abroad. We
also engage in the independent power production business outside the United States. We own, have equity
investments in, and/or operate 54 energy generation facilities, 42 of which are in the United States and 12 of which are
located outside the United States. Our energy generation facilities use a variety of fuels, including municipal solid
waste, water (hydroelectric), natural gas, coal, wood waste, landfill gas and heavy fuel-oil. We also own or operate
several businesses that are associated with our energy-from-waste business, including a waste procurement business,
two landfills, and several waste transfer stations. We also operate one domestic water treatment facility.

We believe our business offers solutions to public sector leaders around the world in two related elements of critical
infrastructure: post-recycling waste disposal and energy generation. We believe the environmental benefits of
energy-from-waste, as an alternative to landfilling, are clear and compelling: utilizing energy-from-waste reduces
greenhouse gas emissions, lowers the risk of groundwater contamination, and conserves land. At the same time,
energy-from-waste generates clean reliable energy from a renewable fuel source, thus reducing dependence on fossil
fuels, the combustion of which is itself a major contributor to greenhouse gas emissions. As public planners address
their needs for more environmentally sensitive waste disposal and energy generation in the years ahead, we believe
energy-from-waste will be an increasingly attractive alternative.

In March 2007, we announced that we have developed and successfully tested two new and cost-effective
technologies that represented major advances in controlling nitrogen oxide (NOx) emissions. Both technologies, for
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which patents are pending, have been tested at existing facilities and are now ready for full scale commercial
application. We expect to pursue additional technical improvements to our services and processes that will add value
to our business in the years ahead.

We are focused on:

� providing customers with superior service by operating our existing businesses to historic high standards;
� generating sufficient cash to meet our liquidity needs;
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� paying down Covanta Energy�s project debt;
� investing in and growing our business in order to create additional value for stockholders; and
� seeking acquisition opportunities to expand our operations in the United States and abroad.

Maintaining historic facility production levels while effectively managing operating and maintenance expense is
important to optimize Covanta Energy�s long-term cash generation. We do not expect to make any cash contributions
to Covanta Energy except in conjunction with certain acquisitions and investments permitted under Covanta Energy�s
new credit facilities as described below. Covanta Energy may make limited cash distributions to us under the new
credit facilities.

On January 19, 2007, we announced a comprehensive recapitalization plan utilizing a series of equity and debt
financings. Subsequent to this announcement, we completed the following transactions:

� the refinancing of Covanta Energy�s debt facilities with new Covanta Energy debt facilities, comprised of a
$300 million revolving credit facility, a $320 million funded letter of credit facility, and a $650 million term
loan (collectively referred to as the �New Credit Facilities�);

� an underwritten public offering of 6.118 million shares of our common stock, in which we received proceeds of
approximately $136.6 million, net of underwriting discounts and commissions;

� an underwritten public offering of approximately $373.8 million aggregate principal amount of 1.00% Senior
Convertible Debentures due 2027 (the �Debentures�) issued by us, from which we received proceeds of
approximately $364.4 million, net of underwriting discounts and commissions; and

� the repayment, by means of a tender offer, of approximately $604.4 million in aggregate principal amount of
outstanding notes previously issued by Covanta Energy�s intermediate subsidiaries.

We completed our public offerings of common stock and Debentures, including over-allotment options exercised by
underwriters, on January 31, 2007 and February 6, 2007, and we closed on the New Credit Facilities on February 9,
2007. We completed our tender offer for approximately $604.4 million in aggregate principal amount of outstanding
notes on February 22, 2007. Additional information, including material terms and financial statement impacts related
to our recapitalization plan, is contained in Liquidity and Capital Resources below. Under the New Credit Facilities,
we will have substantially greater, but not unrestricted, ability to make investments in our business and to take
advantage of opportunities to grow our business through investments and acquisitions, both domestically and
internationally.

Our liquidity is enhanced by the existence of net operating loss carryforwards (�NOLs�), which predominantly arose
from our predecessor insurance entities (�Mission Insurance Entities�, formerly named Mission Insurance Group, Inc.),
which have been in state insolvency proceedings in California and Missouri since the late 1980s. As described below,
certain grantor trusts associated with these predecessor insurance entities (and the taxable income and loss they
generate) continue to be included in our consolidated tax group. Our ability to utilize the NOLs to offset taxable
income generated by operations in our Domestic segment could have a material effect on our consolidated financial
condition and results of operations. We had NOLs estimated to be $410 million for federal income tax purposes as of
December 31, 2006. The NOLs will expire in various amounts from December 31, 2007 through December 31, 2025,
if not used. The amount of NOLs available to us will be reduced by any taxable income generated by current members
of our consolidated tax group, which include the grantor trusts described above. During or at the conclusion of the
administration of these grantor trusts by state insurance regulatory agencies, taxable income could result, which could
utilize a portion of our NOLs and in turn could accelerate the date on which we may be otherwise obligated to pay
incremental cash taxes. While we cannot predict with certainty what amounts, if any, may be includable in our taxable
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income as a result of the final administration of the trusts, we believe that any such taxable income will not result in a
material reduction in available NOLs. For additional detail relating to our NOLs and risks attendant thereto, see
Note 11. Income Taxes of the Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (�Notes�) and Item 1A. Risk
Factors in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006.
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Business Development

In our domestic business development efforts, we encounter competition from other companies in pursuing
opportunities in the waste disposal and energy markets. With the New Credit Facilities, we will have greater flexibility
to pursue such opportunities by investing in the business, and making acquisitions.

Our business is capital intensive because it is based upon building and operating municipal solid waste processing and
energy generating projects. In order to provide meaningful growth through development, we must be able to invest our
funds, obtain equity and/or debt financing, and provide support to our operating subsidiaries. Our domestic project
development has recently concentrated on working with our client communities to expand existing energy-from-waste
project capacities and, as a result, we have two expansion projects under construction. We are pursuing additional
project expansion opportunities, contract extension opportunities, acquisition opportunities, and opportunities in
businesses ancillary to our existing business, such as additional waste transfer, transportation, processing and landfill
businesses.

As with our domestic business, the New Credit Facilities afford greater flexibility to invest in and grow our
international business. We are pursuing international waste and/or energy business opportunities, particularly in
markets where the market demand, regulatory environment or other factors encourage technologies such as
energy-from-waste in order to reduce dependence on landfilling, such as in selected countries in the European Union,
including Italy and the United Kingdom, China or island nations where landfilling is a less desirable disposal option.

On February 12, 2007, we entered into agreements relating to the subscription for a 40% equity interest in Chongqing
Sanfeng Environmental Industry Co., Ltd. (�Sanfeng�). Sanfeng, a company located in Chongqing Municipality, China,
is engaged in the business of owning and operating energy-from-waste projects and providing design and engineering,
procurement and construction services for energy-from-waste facilities in China. Sanfeng currently owns minority
equity interests in two 1,200 metric tons per day 24 MW mass-burn energy-from-waste projects. On April 25, 2007,
we closed on this investment and Sanfeng was converted to a Sino-foreign equity joint venture under Chinese law in
which we hold a 40% equity interest and Chongqing Iron & Steel Company (Group) Limited holds the remaining 60%
equity interest. We made an initial cash payment of approximately $11 million in connection with our investment in
Sanfeng. We expect to utilize Sanfeng, which has been renamed Chongqing Sanfeng Covanta Environmental Industry
Co., Ltd., as the principal platform through which we will grow our energy-from-waste business in China, and that we
will make additional investments as and when Sanfeng is successful in developing additional projects.

In December 2006, we discussed with officials of the City of Harrisburg and the Harrisburg Authority (the �Authority�)
a potential transaction to purchase, lease or operate, on a long-term basis, the Authority�s 800 tons per day
energy-from-waste facility located in Harrisburg, Pennsylvania. The facility has been experiencing certain operating
difficulties following significant capital improvements undertaken by another company on the Authority�s behalf. A
subsidiary of Covanta Energy has entered into an interim agreement to operate and maintain the facility through
March 31, 2007 as the Authority�s contractor. On March 28, 2007, the Authority agreed to extend the interim operating
agreement and to open negotiations with us regarding a long-term relationship. Such negotiations are in progress.

Business Segments

Prior to January 1, 2007, we had two reportable business segments � Waste and Energy Services and Other Services.
Given our increased focus on developing our international waste and energy business, we have decided, during this
quarter, to segregate what we previously reported as our Waste and Energy Services segment into two new segments:
Domestic and International. Our remaining operations, which we previously reported as our Other Services segment,
which was comprised of the holding company and insurance subsidiaries� operations, does not meet the quantitative
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thresholds that require separate disclosure as a reportable segment. Therefore, our reportable segments are now
Domestic and International, which are comprised of our domestic and international waste and energy services
operations, respectively.
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Domestic

For all energy-from-waste projects, we receive revenue from two primary sources: fees charged for operating projects
or processing waste received and payments for electricity and steam sales. We also operate, and in some cases have
ownership interests in, transfer stations and landfills which generate revenue from waste disposal fees or operating
fees. In addition, we own and in some cases operate, other renewable energy projects in the United States which
generate electricity from wood waste, landfill gas, and hydroelectric resources. The electricity from these projects is
sold to utilities. For these projects, we receive revenue from electricity sales, and in some cases cash from equity
distributions.

International

Our subsidiary, CPIH, engages primarily in the independent power production business outside the United States.
Through CPIH, we have ownership interests in, and/or operate, independent power production facilities in the
Philippines, China, Bangladesh, India, and Costa Rica, and one energy-from-waste facility in Italy. The Costa Rica
facilities generate electricity from hydroelectric resources while the other independent power production facilities
generate electricity and steam by combusting coal, natural gas, or heavy fuel oil. For these projects, CPIH receives
revenue from operating fees, electricity and steam sales, and in some cases cash from equity distributions.

Contract Structures

We have 23 domestic energy-from-waste projects where we charge a fixed fee (which escalates over time pursuant to
contractual indices we believe are appropriate to reflect price inflation) for operation and maintenance services. We
refer to these projects as having a �Service Fee� structure. Our contracts at Service Fee projects provide revenue that
does not materially vary based on the amount of waste processed or energy generated and as such is relatively stable
for the contract term. In addition, at most of our Service Fee projects, the operating subsidiary retains only a fraction
of the energy revenues generated, with the balance used to provide a credit to the municipal client against its disposal
costs. Therefore, in these projects, the municipal client derives most of the benefit and risk of energy production and
changing energy prices.

We also have 8 domestic energy-from-waste projects where we receive a per-ton fee under contracts for processing
waste. We refer to these projects as having a �Tip Fee� structure. At Tip Fee projects, we generally enter into long-term
waste disposal contracts for a substantial portion of project disposal capacity and retain all of the energy revenue
generated. The waste disposal and energy revenue from these projects is more dependent upon operating performance
and, as such, is subject to greater revenue fluctuation to the extent performance levels fluctuate.

Under both structures, our returns are expected to be stable if we do not incur material unexpected operation and
maintenance costs or other expenses. In addition, most of our energy-from-waste project contracts are structured so
that contract counterparties generally bear, or share in, the costs associated with events or circumstances not within
our control, such as uninsured force majeure events and changes in legal requirements. The stability of our domestic
revenues and returns could be affected by our ability to continue to enforce these obligations. Also, at some of our
energy-from-waste facilities, commodity price risk is mitigated by passing through commodity costs to contract
counterparties. With respect to domestic and international independent power projects, such structural features
generally do not exist because either we operate and maintain such facilities for our own account or we do so on a
cost-plus basis rather than a fixed-fee basis.

At some of our domestic and international independent power projects, our operating subsidiaries purchase fuel in the
open markets which exposes us to fuel price risk. At other plants, fuel costs are contractually included in our
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electricity revenues, or fuel is provided by our customers. In some of our international projects, the project entity
(which in some cases is not our subsidiary) has entered into long-term fuel purchase contracts that protect the project
from changes in fuel prices, provided counterparties to such contracts perform their commitments.
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Seasonal Effects

Our quarterly operating income from domestic and international operations within the same fiscal year typically
differs substantially due to seasonal factors, primarily as a result of the timing of scheduled plant maintenance.

We typically conduct scheduled maintenance periodically each year, which requires that individual boiler units
temporarily cease operations. During these scheduled maintenance periods, we incur material repair and maintenance
expenses and receive less revenue, until the boiler units resume operations. This scheduled maintenance typically
occurs during periods of off-peak electric demand in the spring and fall. The spring scheduled maintenance period is
typically more extensive than scheduled maintenance conducted during the fall. As a result, we typically incur the
highest maintenance expense in the first half of the year. Given these factors, we typically experience lower operating
income from our projects during the first six months of each year, and higher operating income during the second six
months of each year.

Contract Duration

We operate domestic energy-from-waste projects under long-term agreements. For those projects we own, our
contract to sell the project�s energy output (either electricity or steam) generally expires at or after the date when the
initial term of our contract to operate or receive waste also expires. Expiration of these contracts will subject us to
greater market risk in maintaining and enhancing revenues as we enter into new contracts. We intend to enter into
replacement or additional contracts for waste supplies and will sell our energy output either into the regional
electricity grid or pursuant to new contracts. Because project debt on these facilities will be paid off at such time, we
believe we will be able to offer disposal services at rates that will attract sufficient quantities of waste and provide
acceptable revenues. For those projects we operate but do not own, prior to the expiration of the initial term of our
operating contract, we will seek to enter into renewal or replacement contracts to continue operating such projects. We
will seek to bid competitively in the market for additional contracts to operate other facilities as similar contracts of
other vendors expire. There can be no assurance that we will be able to enter into such renewals, replacement or
additional contracts, or that the terms available in the market at the time will be favorable.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Prior to January 1, 2007, we had two reportable business segments � Waste and Energy Services and Other Services.
Given our increased focus on developing our international waste and energy business, we have decided, during this
quarter, to segregate what we previously reported as our Waste and Energy Services segment into two new segments:
Domestic and International. Our remaining operations, which we previously reported as our Other Services segment,
which was comprised of the holding company and insurance subsidiaries� operations, does not meet the quantitative
thresholds which require separate disclosure as a reportable segment. Therefore, our reportable segments are now
Domestic and International, which are comprised of our domestic and international waste and energy services
operations, respectively.
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The following general discussions should be read in conjunction with the condensed consolidated financial statements
and the Notes thereto and other financial information appearing and referred to elsewhere in this report. Additional
detail on comparable revenues, costs and expenses, and operating income is provided in the reported Domestic and
International segment discussions below.

Consolidated Results of Operations � Comparison of Results for the Three Months Ended March 31, 2007 vs.
Results for the Three Months Ended March 31, 2006

For the
Three Months Ended

March 31,
2007 2006

(Unaudited, in thousands)

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS OF OPERATIONS:
Total operating revenues $ 330,209 $ 305,356
Total operating expenses 321,929 269,838

Operating income 8,280 35,518

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE):
Investment income 5,184 2,403
Interest expense (21,260) (28,483)
Loss on extinguishment of debt (32,006) �

Total other expense (48,082) (26,080)

(Loss) income before income tax benefit (expense), minority interests and equity
in net income from unconsolidated investments (39,802) 9,438
Income tax benefit (expense) 18,176 (4,263)
Minority interests (1,398) (600)
Equity in net income from unconsolidated investments 5,106 6,843

NET (LOSS) INCOME $ (17,918) $ 11,418

(LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE:
Basic $ (0.12) $ 0.08

Diluted $ (0.12) $ 0.08

Operating revenues increased by $24.9 million primarily due to increased waste and service revenues at our
energy-from-waste facilities and increased construction revenues at our Hillsborough County facility in the Domestic
segment. Operating expenses increased by $52.1 million primarily due to increased plant operating expenses due to
normal cost escalations such as wages, additional costs related to operations at the Harrisburg facility and the scope
and timing of scheduled plant maintenance. Operating expenses also increased as a result of increased construction
expenses at our Hillsborough County facility and a write-down of assets related to a fire at our SEMASS
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energy-from-waste facility in our Domestic segment as discussed below.

On March 31, 2007, our SEMASS energy-from-waste facility located in Rochester, Massachusetts experienced a fire
in the front-end receiving portion of the facility. As a result of this loss, we recorded an asset impairment of
$18.3 million, pre-tax, in the first quarter of 2007, which represents a preliminary estimate of the net book value of the
assets destroyed. Based upon additional investigation and analysis to be conducted, we may increase the impairment
recorded. The cost of repair or replacement, and business interruption losses, are insured, subject to applicable
deductibles. See Note 16. Commitments and Contingencies of the Notes for additional information.

Total investment income increased by $2.8 million primarily due to higher invested cash balances. Interest expense
decreased by $7.2 million primarily due to lower loan balances and lower interest rates resulting from the May 2006
refinancing and the 2007 recapitalization plan. As a result of the recapitalization plan in the first quarter
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of 2007, we recognized a loss on extinguishment of debt charge of approximately $32.0 million, pre-tax, which is
comprised of the write-down of deferred financing costs, tender premiums paid for the intermediate subsidiary debt,
and a call premium paid in connection with previously existing financing arrangements. These amounts were partially
offset by the write-down of unamortized premiums relating to the intermediate subsidiary debt and a gain associated
with the settlement of our interest rate swap agreements. See Note 12. Changes in Capitalization of the Notes.

Equity in net income from unconsolidated investments decreased by $1.7 million primarily due a $2.0 million increase
in tax expense for the Quezon investment in the Philippines related to the conclusion of a six-year income tax holiday
in May 2006.

Income tax benefit increased by $22.4 million primarily due to the net loss for the quarter ended March 31, 2007
resulting primarily from the write-down of assets related to SEMASS and the loss on extinguishment of debt.

Net loss and diluted loss per share was $17.9 million and $0.12, respectively, for the quarter ended March 31, 2007
compared to net income and diluted earnings per share of $11.4 million and $0.08, respectively, for the quarter ended
March 31, 2006.

Additional detail on comparable revenues, costs and expenses, and operating income is provided in the reported
Domestic and International segment discussions below.

Domestic Results of Operations � Comparison of Results for the Three Months Ended March 31, 2007 vs.
Results for the Three Months Ended March 31, 2006

For the
Three Months Ended

March 31,
2007 2006

(Unaudited, in thousands)

Waste and service revenues $ 197,882 $ 189,938
Electricity and steam sales 74,894 71,764
Other operating revenues 14,979 869

Total operating revenues 287,755 262,571

Plant operating expenses 170,461 158,170
Depreciation and amortization expense 46,005 44,223
Net interest expense on project debt 13,085 13,924
Write-down of assets 18,266 �
Other operating expense 14,772 126
General and administrative expenses 19,931 16,339

Total operating expenses 282,520 232,782

Operating income $ 5,235 $ 29,789
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Total Domestic revenues increased by $25.2 million primarily due to contractual escalations and revenues related to
construction activity as described below.

Waste and service revenues increased by $7.9 million or 4% as a result of the following factors:

� Revenues from energy-from-waste projects structured with Service Fee arrangements increased by
$4.4 million. Such revenues increased by $3.6 million due to operations at the Harrisburg facility and increased
by $2.0 million due to contractual escalations offset by a reduction of $1.2 million related to lower revenues
earned explicitly to service debt;

� Revenues from energy-from-waste projects structured with Tip Fee arrangements increased by $1.8 million
primarily driven by higher pricing and volumes of waste handled; and
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� Other waste and service fee revenues increased by $1.7 million primarily due to higher pricing for scrap metal.

Electricity and steam sales increased $3.1 million or 4% primarily due to higher energy rates along with revenues
received related to energy rate settlements related to prior years partially offset by lower volumes.

Other operating revenues increased by $14.1 million primarily related to construction revenues at our Hillsborough
County facility.

Plant operating expenses increased by $12.3 million primarily due to normal cost escalations such as wages,
$3.2 million related to operations at the Harrisburg facility and the scope and timing of scheduled plant maintenance.

Depreciation and amortization expense increased by $1.8 million primarily due to additions of property, plant and
equipment.

Net interest expense on project debt decreased by $0.8 million primarily due to lower project debt balances.

On March 31, 2007, our SEMASS energy-from-waste facility located in Rochester, Massachusetts experienced a fire
in the front-end receiving portion of the facility. As a result of this loss, we recorded an asset impairment of
$18.3 million, pre-tax, in the first quarter of 2007, which represents a preliminary estimate of the net book value of the
assets destroyed. Based upon additional investigation and analysis to be conducted, we may increase the impairment
recorded. The cost of repair or replacement, and business interruption losses, are insured, subject to applicable
deductibles. See Note 16. Commitments and Contingencies of the Notes for additional information.

Other operating expense increased by $14.6 million primarily due to costs related to construction at the Hillsborough
County facility.

General and administrative expenses increased by $3.6 million primarily due to normal wage and benefit escalations
and additional business development spending.

International Results of Operations � Comparison of Results for the Three Months Ended March 31, 2007 vs.
Results for the Three Months Ended March 31, 2006

For the
Three Months Ended

March 31,
2007 2006

(Unaudited, in thousands)

Waste and service revenues $ 1,029 $ 1,431
Electricity and steam sales 38,772 37,414

Total operating revenues 39,801 38,845

Plant operating expenses 31,546 28,379
Depreciation and amortization expense 2,027 2,157
Net interest expense on project debt 1,520 2,074
Other operating income (166) (384)
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General and administrative expenses 1,371 1,091

Total operating expenses 36,298 33,317

Operating income $ 3,503 $ 5,528

Total revenues increased by approximately $1 million primarily due to a $6 million increase in revenues under energy
contracts at both Indian facilities resulting from higher electricity generation. This increase was partially offset by a
$1 million decrease in revenues from lower recovered fuel prices during the first quarter of 2007, a $1.8 million
decrease in revenues resulting from the sale of the Huantai facility in China during the second quarter

35

Edgar Filing: COVANTA HOLDING CORP - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 68



Table of Contents

of 2006 and a $1.5 million decrease in revenues from the Yanjiang facility in China resulting from lower steam sales
during the first quarter of 2007.

Plant operating expenses increased by $3.2 million primarily due to a $6.2 million increase resulting from higher
generation at both Indian facilities during the first quarter of 2007, partially offset by a $1.7 million decrease in plant
operating costs due to the sale of the Huantai facility in China in the second quarter of 2006 and a $1.0 million
decrease due to lower generation at the Yanjiang facility in China.

Net interest expense on project debt decreased by $0.6 million primarily due to the scheduled quarterly pay down of
project debt at both Indian facilities.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

On January 19, 2007, we announced a comprehensive recapitalization plan utilizing a series of equity and debt
financings. We completed public offerings of common stock and Debentures, including over-allotment options
exercised by underwriters, on January 31, 2007 and February 6, 2007, and we closed on the New Credit Facilities on
February 9, 2007. We completed the tender offer of intermediate debt for approximately $604.4 million in aggregate
principal amount of outstanding notes on February 22, 2007 and on April 16, 2007 redeemed additional notes of
approximately $1.4 million. Under the New Credit Facilities, we will have substantially greater, but not unrestricted,
ability to make investments in our business and to take advantage of opportunities to grow our business through
investments and acquisitions, both domestically and internationally. Additional information, including material terms
related to our recapitalization plan, is contained below under 2007 Recapitalization Plan.

Generating sufficient cash to meet our liquidity needs, pay down debt and to invest in our business remains an
important objective of management. Maintaining historic facility production levels while effectively managing
operating and maintenance expenses is important to optimize long-term cash generation. We do not expect to make
any cash contributions to Covanta Energy, except in connection with certain acquisitions and investments permitted
under Covanta Energy�s New Credit Facilities (described below under 2007 Recapitalization Plan). Covanta Energy
may make limited cash distributions to us under the New Credit Facilities.

Covanta Energy derives its cash flows principally from its domestic and international project operations and
businesses. The frequency and predictability of Covanta Energy�s receipt of cash from projects differs, depending upon
various factors, including whether restrictions on distributions exist in applicable project debt arrangements, whether a
project is domestic or international, and whether a project has been able to operate at historical levels of production.

Covanta Energy�s receipt of cash from its international projects is also subject to satisfaction of financial tests and
other covenants contained in applicable project debt arrangements. A material portion of cash from Covanta Energy�s
international projects are received semi-annually, during the second and fourth quarters.

As of March 31, 2007, Covanta Energy was in compliance with covenants under the New Credit Facilities. We
believe that when combined with its other sources of liquidity, including the revolving loan facility that is a
component of the New Credit Facilities, Covanta Energy�s operations will generate sufficient cash over at least the
next twelve months to meet operational needs, make capital expenditures, invest in the business and service debt due
prior to maturity.
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Capital Resources and Commitments

The following chart summarizes the various debt facilities and cash resources as of March 31, 2007 (in millions of
dollars):
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Cash Flow and Liquidity

The information set forth below regarding liquidity and capital resources as of March 31, 2007 is presented according
to our consolidated operations and our current segments of Domestic and International.

Cash Flow

Our sources of funds are our investments and financing activities (including offerings of equity and/or debt securities),
as well as dividends, if any, and other payments received from our subsidiaries. Under the financing arrangements
existing during 2006 and prior to the New Credit Facilities, Covanta Energy�s ability to pay dividends to us was
limited, except in certain circumstances. Under the New Credit Facilities, Covanta Energy has greater flexibility to
distribute cash to us. Proceeds of approximately $364.4 million and $136.6 million, each net of underwriting discounts
and commissions, were received during the three months ended March 31, 2007 related to underwritten public
offerings of Debentures and common stock, respectively. On February 24, 2006, we completed a rights offering in
which 5,696,911 shares were issued in consideration for $20.8 million in gross proceeds.

Summarized cash flow information for our current business segments reconciled to the condensed consolidated
statements of cash flows is as follows (in thousands of dollars):

For the Three Months Ended March 31, 2007

Domestic International
All

Other(1) Total

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 46,107 $ 7,105 $ 3,242 $ 56,454
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities (14,660) (101) 4,471 (10,290)
Net cash (used in ) provided by financing
activities (146,366) (4,620) 10,952 (140,034)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash
equivalents � 105 � 105

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash
equivalents $ (114,919) $ 2,489 $ 18,665 $ (93,765)

For the Three Months Ended March 31, 2006

Domestic International
All

Other(1) Total

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 33,376 $ 7,012 $ 9,712 $ 50,100
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities (17,671) (158) 1,281 (16,548)
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (26,092) (6,130) 20,797 (11,425)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash
equivalents � 56 � 56

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents $ (10,387) $ 780 $ 31,790 $ 22,183
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(1) All other is comprised of the holding company and insurance subsidiaries� operations.

Domestic Segment

Cash provided by operating activities was $46.1 million and $33.4 million for the three months ended March 31, 2007
and 2006, respectively. The increase in cash flow from operating activities was primarily due to working capital
improvements and a $10.3 million payment from Domestic to All Other in the three months ended March 31, 2006,
relating to the California Grantor Trust settlement. Net cash used in investing activities was $14.7 million and
$17.7 million for the three months ended March 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, and was primarily due to the
purchase of property, plant and equipment. Net cash used in financing activities was $146.4 million for the three
months ended March 31, 2007 primarily due to the 2007 recapitalization plan. The net proceeds from refinancing the
New Credit Facilities was $5.6 million, net of transaction fees. The combination of the proceeds from the public
offerings of Debentures and common stock noted above and approximately $130 million in cash and restricted cash
(available for use as a result of the recapitalization plan) were utilized for the repayment, by means of a tender offer,
of approximately $604.4 million in principal amount of outstanding notes previously issued by certain intermediate
subsidiaries of Covanta Energy. Net cash
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used in financing activities was $26.1 million for the three months ended March 31, 2006 and was primarily driven by
the repayment of debt partially offset by a decrease in restricted funds held in trust.

Restricted funds held in trust were $337.6 million as of March 31, 2007. Restricted funds held in trust are primarily
amounts received and held by third party trustees relating to projects owned by Covanta Energy, and which may be
used only for specified purposes. These payments are made directly to the trustee primarily for related project debt
and are held by it until paid to project debt holders. We do not have access to these funds.

International Segment

Cash provided by operating activities was $7.1 million and $7.0 million for the three months ended March 31, 2007
and 2006, respectively. Net cash used in financing activities was $4.6 million and $6.1 million for the three months
ended March 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, primarily due to scheduled quarterly pay down of project debt at both
Indian facilities. Restricted funds held in trust were $36.1 million as of March 31, 2007.

2007 Recapitalization Plan

On January 19, 2007, we announced a comprehensive recapitalization plan utilizing a series of equity and debt
financings. Subsequent to this announcement, we completed the following transactions:

� the refinancing of Covanta Energy�s debt facilities with the New Credit Facilities, comprised of a $300 million
revolving credit facility, a $320 million funded letter of credit facility and a $650 million term loan;

� an underwritten public offering of 6.118 million shares of our common stock, in which we received proceeds of
approximately $136.6 million, net of underwriting discounts and commissions;

� an underwritten public offering of approximately $373.8 million aggregate principal amount of Debentures
issued by us, from which we received proceeds of approximately $364.4 million, net of underwriting discounts
and commissions; and

� the repayment, by means of a tender offer, of approximately $604.4 million in aggregate principal amount of
outstanding notes previously issued by Covanta Energy�s intermediate subsidiaries.

We completed our public offerings of common stock and Debentures, including over-allotment options exercised by
underwriters, on January 31, 2007 and February 6, 2007, and we closed on the New Credit Facilities on February 9,
2007. We completed our tender offer for approximately $604.4 million in aggregate principal amount of outstanding
notes on February 22, 2007. As a result of the recapitalization plan in the first quarter of 2007, we recognized a loss on
extinguishment of debt of approximately $32.0 million, pre-tax, which is comprised of the write-down of deferred
financing costs, tender premiums paid for the intermediate subsidiary debt, and a call premium paid in connection
with previously-existing financing arrangements. These amounts were partially offset by the write-down of
unamortized premiums relating to the intermediate subsidiary debt and a gain associated with the settlement of our
interest rate swap agreements. The following discussion details the material terms of each of these transactions.

Material Terms of New Credit Facilities

The New Credit Facilities are comprised of:

� a $300 million revolving loan facility due 2013, which includes a $200 million sub-facility for the issuance of
letters of credit (the �Revolving Loan Facility�);
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� a $320 million funded letter of credit facility, due 2014 (the �Funded L/C Facility�); and

� a $650 million term loan facility, due 2014 (the �Term Loan Facility�).
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Amortization Terms

The New Credit Facilities include mandatory annual amortization of the Term Loan Facility to be paid in quarterly
installments beginning June 30, 2007, through the date of maturity as follows (in thousands of dollars):

Annual
Remaining

Amortization

2007 $ 4,875
2008 6,500
2009 6,500
2010 6,500
2011 6,500
2012 6,500
2013 6,500
2014 606,125

Total $ 650,000

Under the New Credit Facilities, Covanta Energy is obligated to apply a portion of excess cash from operations on an
annual basis (calculated pursuant to the credit agreement), as well as specified other sources, to repay borrowings
under the Term Loan Facility. The portion of excess cash to be used for this purpose is 50%, 25%, or 0%, based on
measurement of the leverage ratio under the financial covenants.

Interest and Fee Terms

Loans under the New Credit Facilities are designated, at our election, as Eurodollar rate loans or base rate loans.
Eurodollar loans bear interest at a reserve adjusted British Bankers Association Interest Settlement Rate, commonly
referred to as �LIBOR,� for deposits in dollars plus a borrowing margin as described below. Interest on Eurodollar rate
loans is payable at the end of the applicable interest period of one, two, three or six months (and at the end of every
three months in the case of six month Eurodollar loans). Base rate loans bear interest at (a) a rate per annum equal to
the greater of (1) the �prime rate� designated in the relevant facility or (2) the federal funds rate plus 0.5% per annum,
plus (b) a borrowing margin as described below.

Letters of credit that may be issued in the future under the Revolving Loan Facility will accrue fees at the then
effective borrowing margins on Eurodollar rate loans (described below), plus a fee on each issued letter of credit
payable to the issuing bank. Letter of credit availability under the Funded L/C Facility accrues fees (whether or not
letters of credit are issued thereunder) at the then effective borrowing margin for Eurodollar rate loans times the total
availability under letters of credit (whether or not then utilized), plus a fee on each issued letter of credit payable to the
issuing bank. In addition, Covanta Energy has agreed to pay to the participants under the Funded L/C Facility a fee
equal to 0.10% times the average daily amount of the credit linked deposit paid by such participants for their
participation under the Funded L/C Facility.

The borrowing margins referred to above for the Revolving Loan Facility, the Term Loan Facility and the Funded L/C
Facility are as follows:
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Borrowing
Margin

Borrowing
Margin

for Term
Loans,

for Term
Loans,

Funded
Letters of

Funded
Letters of

Credit and Credit and
Borrowing

Margin
Borrowing

Margin Credit-Linked Credit-Linked
for Revolving

Loans
for Revolving

Loans Deposits Deposits

Leverage Ratio
(Eurodollar

Loans)
(Base Rate

Loans)
(Eurodollar

Loans)
(Base Rate

Loans)

≥ 4.00:1.00 2.00% 1.00% 1.75% 0.75%
< 4.00:1.00 and ≥ 3.25:1.00 1.75% 0.75% 1.50% 0.50%
< 3.25:1.00 and ≥ 2.75:1.00 1.50% 0.50% 1.50% 0.50%
< 2.75:1.00 1.25% 0.25% 1.50% 0.50%
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Guarantees and Securitization

The New Credit Facilities are guaranteed by us and by certain Covanta Energy subsidiaries. Covanta Energy and
certain of its subsidiaries that are party to the New Credit Facilities agreed to secure all of Covanta Energy�s
obligations under the New Credit Facilities by granting, for the benefit of secured parties, a first priority lien on
substantially all of their assets, to the extent permitted by existing contractual obligations, a pledge of substantially all
of the capital stock of each of Covanta Energy�s domestic subsidiaries owned by it and 65% of substantially all the
capital stock of each of Covanta Energy�s foreign subsidiaries directly owned by it, in each case to the extent not
otherwise pledged.

Debt Covenants and Defaults

The loan documentation under the New Credit Facilities contains customary affirmative and negative covenants and
financial covenants. During the term of the New Credit Facilities, we expect that the negative covenants will place
limitations on Covanta Energy, but be materially less restrictive than the restrictions in effect prior to February 9,
2007.

The affirmative covenants of the New Credit Facilities include covenants relating to the following:

� financial statements and other reports;
� continued existence;
� payment of taxes and claims;
� maintenance of properties;
� insurance coverage;
� inspections by lenders (subject to frequency and cost reimbursement limitations);
� lenders meetings;
� compliance with laws;
� environmental matters;
� additional material real estate assets;
� designation of subsidiaries; and
� post-closing matters.

The negative covenants of the New Credit Facilities include limitations on the following:

� indebtedness (including guarantee obligations);
� liens;
� negative pledge clauses;
� restricted junior payments;
� subsidiary distributions;
� investments;
� fundamental changes;
� disposition of assets;
� acquisitions;
� conduct of business;
� amendments or waivers of certain agreements;
� changes in fiscal year; and
� hedge agreements.

The financial covenants of the New Credit Facilities include the following:
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� maximum Covanta Energy leverage ratio, which measures Covanta Energy�s principal amount of consolidated
debt less certain restricted funds dedicated to repayment of project debt principal and construction costs
(�Consolidated Adjusted Debt�) to its adjusted earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization, as
calculated under the New Credit Facilities (�Adjusted EBITDA�);

� maximum Covanta Energy capital expenditures; and
� minimum Covanta Energy interest coverage ratio, which measures Covanta Energy�s Adjusted EBITDA to its

consolidated interest expense plus certain interest expense of ours, to the extent paid by Covanta Energy.
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Defaults under the New Credit Facilities include:

� non-payment of principal when due;
� non-payment of any amount payable to an issuing bank in reimbursement of any drawing under a letter of

credit when due;
� non-payment of interest, fees or other amounts after a grace period of five days;
� cross-default to material indebtedness;
� violation of a covenant (subject, in the case of certain affirmative covenants, to a grace period of thirty days);
� material inaccuracy of a representation or warranty when made;
� bankruptcy events with respect to us, Covanta Energy or any material subsidiary or group of subsidiaries of

Covanta Energy;
� material judgments;
� certain material ERISA events;
� change of control (subject to exceptions for certain of our existing owners);
� failure of subordination; and
� actual or asserted invalidity of any guarantee or security document.

Material Terms of the Debentures

On January 31, 2007, we also completed an underwritten public offering of $373.8 million aggregate principal amount
of Debentures. This offering included Debentures sold pursuant to an over-allotment option which was exercised by
the underwriters. The Debentures constitute our general unsecured senior obligations and will rank equally in right of
payment with any future senior unsecured indebtedness. The Debentures are effectively junior to our existing and
future secured indebtedness, including the New Credit Facilities, to the extent of the value of the assets securing such
indebtedness. The Debentures are not guaranteed by any of our subsidiaries and are effectively subordinated to all
existing and future indebtedness and liabilities (including trade payables) of our subsidiaries.

The Debentures bear interest at a rate of 1.00% per year, payable semi-annually in arrears, on February 1 and
August 1 of each year, commencing on August 1, 2007 and will mature on February 1, 2027. Beginning with the
six-month interest period commencing February 1, 2012, we will pay contingent interest on the Debentures during any
six-month interest period in which the trading price of the Debentures measured over a specified number of trading
days is 120% or more of the principal amount of the Debentures. When applicable, the contingent interest payable per
$1,000 principal amount of Debentures will equal 0.25% of the average trading price of $1,000 principal amount of
Debentures during the five trading days ending on the second trading day immediately preceding the first day of the
applicable six-month interest period. The contingent interest feature in the Debentures is an embedded derivative
instrument. The first contingent cash interest payment period does not commence until February 1, 2012, and as such,
the fair market value for the embedded derivative was zero as of March 31, 2007.

Under limited circumstances, the Debentures are convertible by the holders thereof, at any time, into cash and shares
of our common stock, if any, initially based on a conversion rate of 35.4610 shares of our common stock per $1,000
principal amount of Debentures, (which represents an initial conversion price of approximately $28.20 per share). For
additional information regarding the Debentures, see Note 12. Changes in Capitalization of the Notes.

At our option, the Debentures are subject to redemption at any time on or after February 1, 2012, in whole or in part,
at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the Debentures being redeemed, plus accrued and
unpaid interest (including contingent interest, if any). In addition, holders may require us to repurchase their
Debentures on February 1, 2012, February 1, 2017 and February 1, 2022, in whole or in part, for cash at a repurchase
price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the Debentures being repurchased, plus accrued and unpaid interest

Edgar Filing: COVANTA HOLDING CORP - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 79



(including contingent interest, if any). The Debentures are also subject to repurchase by us, at the holder�s option, if a
fundamental change occurs, for cash at a repurchase price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the Debentures,
plus accrued and unpaid interest (including contingent interest, if any).

Material Terms of Equity Offering

On January 31, 2007, we completed an underwritten public offering of 5.32 million shares of our common stock. The
shares were sold to the public at a price of $23.50 per share. We granted the underwriters an option to
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purchase up to an additional 798,000 shares of common stock at $22.325 per share for a period of 30 days beginning
on and including the date of original issuance of the shares in connection with this offering, solely to cover
over-allotments. The option was exercised and such additional shares were sold on February 6, 2007. Proceeds
received in these offerings were approximately $136.6 million, net of underwriting discounts and commissions.

Intermediate Subsidiary Debt Tender Offer

On January 23, 2007, we commenced cash tender offers for (a) any and all of the outstanding 81/2% Senior Secured
Notes due 2010 (the �MSW I Notes�) issued by MSW Energy Holdings LLC and its wholly owned subsidiary, MSW
Energy Finance Co., Inc. (collectively referred to as �MSW I�), (b) any and all of the outstanding 73/8% Senior Secured
Notes due 2010 (the �MSW II Notes�) issued by MSW Energy Holdings II LLC and its wholly owned subsidiary, MSW
Energy Finance Co. II, Inc. and (collectively referred to as �MSW II�) (c) any and all of the outstanding 6.26% Senior
Notes due 2015 (the �ARC Notes�) of Covanta ARC LLC.

In connection with each of the tender offers, we solicited the consents of the holders of each of the Notes to certain
proposed amendments to the indentures governing such Notes. The primary purpose of the solicitations and the
proposed amendments was to eliminate from the indentures substantially all of the restrictive covenants and certain
events of default provisions contained therein.

Under the terms of the tender offer for the MSW I Notes and MSW II Notes, we offered to purchase the outstanding
MSW I Notes and MSW II Notes for a total consideration, for each $1,000 principal amount of MSW I Notes and
MSW II Notes validly tendered and accepted for payment, equal to $1,096.46 and $1,079.92, respectively, which
included a consent fee of $30 for each $1,000 principal amount of MSW I Notes and MSW II Notes validly tendered
and accepted for payment.

Under the terms of the tender offer for the ARC Notes, we offered to purchase the outstanding ARC Notes for total
consideration, for each $1,000 original principal amount of ARC Notes validly tendered and accepted for payment,
equal to $729.82, which included a consent fee of $30 for each $1,000 principal amount of ARC Notes validly
tendered and accepted for payment.

The solicitations for each of the Notes expired on February 5, 2007. At that time, we had received consents from the
requisite number of holders of each of the outstanding MSW I Notes, MSW II Notes and ARC Notes, to amend the
applicable indentures governing each of the Notes to eliminate substantially all of the restrictive covenants and certain
events of default provisions. Each of the issuers entered into a supplemental indenture with the respective trustee for
the applicable Notes. The supplemental indentures became operative on February 22, 2007.

As of March 31, 2007, the remaining outstanding debt for the MSW I Notes, MSW II Notes and the ARC Notes was
$5.6 million, $0.5 million and $1.4 million, respectively. On March 16, 2007, we issued a Notice of Redemption for
the remaining ARC Notes. All outstanding ARC Notes were redeemed on April 16, 2007 at a total redemption price of
$743.50 per $1,000 in original principal amount of the ARC Notes, which includes principal outstanding, premium
and accrued interest up to the redemption date. We expect to redeem the MSW I Notes and MSW II Notes during the
third quarter of 2007. MSW I and MSW II may, at their respective options, redeem, and currently intend to redeem the
MSW I Notes and MSW II Notes, respectively, in whole or in part, at $1,042.50 and $1,036.88, respectively, per
$1,000 principal amount (plus accrued and unpaid interest to the date of redemption) during the third quarter of 2007.
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Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt is comprised of credit facilities and intermediate debt as follows (in thousands of dollars):

As of
March 31, December 31,

2007 2006

Covanta
1.00% Senior Convertible Debentures due 2027 $ 373,750 $ �
Covanta Energy Senior Secured Credit Facilities
First Lien Term Loan Facility � 368,389
Second Lien Term Loan Facility � 260,000
Term Loan Facility due 2014 650,000 �

650,000 628,389

Covanta Energy Intermediate Subsidiary Debt
6.26% Senior ARC Notes due 2015 1,396 192,000
8.50% Senior Secured MSW Notes due 2010 5,610 195,785
7.375% Senior Secured MSW II Notes due 2010 500 224,100

7,506 611,885
Unamortized debt premium 276 19,748

Total intermediate subsidiary debt 7,782 631,633

Other Covanta Energy long-term debt 53 101

Total 1,031,585 1,260,123
Less: current portion (includes $261 and $4,732 of unamortized premium) (14,324) (36,434)

Total long-term debt $ 1,017,261 $ 1,223,689

Short-Term Liquidity

As of March 31, 2007, Covanta Energy had available credit for liquidity as follows (in thousands of dollars):

Total Available
Available As of

Under Facility Maturing
March 31,

2007

Revolving Loan Facility(1) $ 300,000 2013 $ 300,000
Funded L/C Facility $ 320,000 2014 $ 3,156

Edgar Filing: COVANTA HOLDING CORP - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 82



(1) Up to $200 million of which may be utilized for letters of credit.

As of March 31, 2007, Covanta Energy had not drawn any loans from the Revolving Loan Facility. As of March 31,
2007, Covanta Energy had approximately $316.8 million outstanding letters of credit under the Funded L/C Facility.

Covanta Energy Project Debt

Domestic Project Debt

Financing for Covanta Energy�s energy-from-waste projects is generally accomplished through tax-exempt and taxable
municipal revenue bonds issued by or on behalf of the municipal client. For such facilities that are owned by Covanta
Energy�s subsidiary, the issuers of the bond loans the bond proceeds to Covanta Energy�s subsidiary to pay for facility
construction. For such facilities, project-related debt is included as �Project debt (short- and long-term)� in our
condensed consolidated financial statements. Generally, such project debt is secured
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by the revenues generated by the project and other project assets including the related facility. Such project debt of
Covanta Energy�s subsidiaries is described in the chart below under Capital Requirements as non-recourse project
debt. The only potential recourse to Covanta Energy with respect to project debt arises under the operating
performance guarantees described below under Other Commitments and Contingencies.

Certain subsidiaries had recourse liability for project debt which is recourse to Covanta ARC LLC, but is non-recourse
to Covanta Energy, which as of March 31, 2007 was as follows (in thousands of dollars):

Covanta Niagara, L.P. Series 2001 Bonds $ 165,010
Covanta Southeastern Connecticut Company Corporate Credit Bonds $ 43,500
Covanta Hempstead Company Corporate Credit Bonds $ 42,670

International Project Debt

Financing for projects in which we have an ownership or operating interest is generally accomplished through
commercial loans from local lenders or financing arranged through international banks, bonds issued to institutional
investors and from multilateral lending institutions based in the United States. Such debt is generally secured by the
revenues generated by the project and other project assets and is without recourse to CPIH or Covanta Energy. Project
debt relating to two CPIH projects in India is included as �Project debt (short- and long-term)� in our consolidated
financial statements. In most projects, the instruments defining the rights of debt holders generally provide that the
project subsidiary may not make distributions to its parent until periodic debt service obligations are satisfied and
other financial covenants are complied with.

CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS

We believe that when combined with our other sources of liquidity, our operations generate sufficient cash to meet
operational needs, capital expenditures, and debt service due prior to maturity. We will also seek to enhance our cash
flow from renewals or replacement of existing contracts, from new contracts to expand existing facilities or operate
additional facilities and by investing in new projects. Our projected contractual obligations are consistent with
amounts disclosed in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006.

Other Commitments and Contingencies

Other commitments as of March 31, 2007 were as follows (in thousands of dollars):

Commitments Expiring by Period
Less Than More Than

Total One Year One Year

Letters of credit $ 322,532 $ 4,401 $ 318,131
Surety bonds 61,751 � 61,751

Total other commitments � net $ 384,283 $ 4,401 $ 379,882

The letters of credit were issued pursuant to the facilities to secure our performance under various contractual
undertakings related to our domestic and international projects, or to secure obligations under our insurance program.
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Each letter of credit relating to a project is required to be maintained in effect for the period specified in related project
contracts, and generally may be drawn if it is not renewed prior to expiration of that period.

As of March 31, 2007, Covanta Energy had approximately $3.2 million in available capacity for additional letters of
credit under its Funded L/C Facility and $200 million available capacity for letters of credit under its Revolving
Loan Facility. We believe that we will be able to fully perform under our contracts to which these existing letters of
credit relate, and that it is unlikely that letters of credit would be drawn because of a default of our performance
obligations. If any of these letters of credit were to be drawn under the current debt facilities, the amount drawn would
be immediately repayable to the issuing bank. If we were unable to immediately repay such amounts drawn under
these letters of credit, unreimbursed amounts would be treated under the New Credit Facilities as additional term loans
issued under the Term Loan Facility.
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The surety bonds listed on the table above relate primarily to performance obligations ($52.8 million) and support for
closure obligations of various energy projects when such projects cease operating ($9.0 million). Were these bonds to
be drawn upon, Covanta Energy would have a contractual obligation to indemnify the surety company.

We have certain contingent obligations related to the Debentures. These are:

� holders may require us to repurchase their Debentures on February 1, 2012, February 1, 2017 and February 1,
2022;

� holders may require us to repurchase their Debentures, if a fundamental change occurs; and
� holders may exercise their conversion rights upon the occurrence of certain events, which would require us to

pay the conversion settlement amount in cash and/or our common stock.

See Note 12. Changes in Capitalization � 2007 Recapitalization Plan � Material Terms of the Debentures for specific
criteria related to contingent interest, conversion or redemption features of the Debentures.

Covanta Energy and certain of its subsidiaries have issued or are party to performance guarantees and related
contractual support obligations undertaken mainly pursuant to agreements to construct and operate certain
energy-from-waste facilities and a water facility. With respect to its domestic businesses, Covanta Energy and certain
of its subsidiaries have issued guarantees to municipal clients and other parties that Covanta Energy�s subsidiaries will
perform in accordance with contractual terms, including, where required, the payment of damages or other
obligations. Such contractual damages or other obligations could be material, and in circumstances where one or more
subsidiary�s contract has been terminated for its default, such damages could include amounts sufficient to repay
project debt. For facilities owned by municipal clients and operated by Covanta Energy, Covanta Energy�s potential
maximum liability as of March 31, 2007 associated with the repayment of the municipalities� project debt on such
facilities was approximately $1 billion. This amount was not recorded as a liability in our condensed consolidated
balance sheet as of March 31, 2007 as we believe that Covanta Energy had not incurred such liability as of the date of
the financial statements. Additionally, damages payable under such guarantees on Covanta Energy-owned
energy-from-waste facilities could expose Covanta Energy to recourse liability on project debt. We also believe that
Covanta Energy has not incurred such damages as of the date of the financial statements. If Covanta Energy is asked
to perform under one or more of such guarantees, its liability for damages upon contract termination would be reduced
by funds held in trust and proceeds from sales of the facilities securing the project debt, which is presently not
estimable.

With respect to our international businesses, Covanta Energy and certain of its subsidiaries have issued guarantees on
behalf of our international operating subsidiaries with respect to contractual obligations to operate certain international
power projects and one energy-from-waste project. The potential damages owed under such arrangements for
international projects may be material.

Depending upon the circumstances giving rise to such domestic and international damages, the contractual terms of
the applicable contracts, and the contract counterparty�s choice of remedy at the time a claim against a guarantee is
made, the amounts owed pursuant to one or more of such guarantees could be greater than Covanta Energy�s
then-available sources of funds. To date, Covanta Energy has not incurred material liabilities under its guarantees,
either on domestic or international projects.

On March 31, 2007, our SEMASS energy-from-waste facility located in Rochester, Massachusetts experienced a fire
in the front-end receiving portion of the facility. Damage was extensive to this portion of the facility and operations at
the facility were suspended completely for approximately 20 days. Partial operations have resumed, and full-scale
operations are expected to resume during May 2007. The cost of repair or replacement, and business interruption
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losses, are insured, subject to applicable deductibles. We cannot predict the timing of when we would receive the
proceeds under such policies. We expect the cost of repair or replacement, and business interruption losses we do not
recover, representing deductibles under such policies, will not be material.

Discussion of Critical Accounting Policies

In preparing our condensed consolidated financial statements in accordance with United States generally accepted
accounting principles, we are required to use judgment in making estimates and assumptions that affect
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the amounts reported in our financial statements and related notes. We base our estimates on historical experience and
on various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. These estimates form the
basis for making judgments about the carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Many of our critical accounting policies are subject to significant judgments and uncertainties which could
potentially result in materially different results under different conditions and assumptions. Future events rarely
develop exactly as forecast, and the best estimates routinely require adjustment. See Discussion of Critical Accounting
Policies in Item 7. Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations of our
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

See Note 2. New Accounting Pronouncements of the Notes for information related to new accounting
pronouncements.

ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

In the normal course of business, our subsidiaries are party to financial instruments that are subject to market risks
arising from changes in interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates, and commodity prices. Our use of derivative
instruments is very limited and we do not enter into derivative instruments for trading purposes.

Except as described below, management believes there have been no material changes during the three months ended
March 31, 2007 to the items discussed in Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk in our
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006.

Interest Rate Swaps

Covanta Energy was required, under financing arrangements in effect since June 24, 2005, to enter into hedging
arrangements with respect to a portion of its exposure to interest rate changes with respect to its borrowing under the
Credit Facilities. On July 8, 2005, Covanta Energy entered into two separate pay fixed, receive floating interest rate
swap agreements with a total notional amount of $300 million. On March 21, 2006, we entered into one additional pay
fixed, receive floating interest rate swap agreement with a notional amount of $37.5 million. On December 27, 2006,
the notional amount of the original interest rate swap agreements reduced to $250 million from $300 million. These
interest rate swaps were designated as cash flow hedges in accordance with SFAS No. 133 �Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities� (�SFAS 133�). Accordingly, unrealized gains or losses were deferred in other
comprehensive income until the hedged cash flows affect earnings. The impact of the interest rate swaps was a
decrease to interest expense for the three months ended March 31, 2006 of $0.2 million. In connection with the
refinancing of Covanta Energy�s debt facilities, the interest rate swap agreements described above were settled on
February 9, 2007. We recognized a gain associated with the settlement of our interest rate swap agreements of
$3.4 million, pre-tax. The New Credit Facilities do not require us to enter into interest rate swap agreements. For
additional information related to the New Credit Facilities, see Note 12. Changes in Capitalization of the Notes.

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Our management, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, has evaluated the
effectiveness of Covanta�s disclosure controls and procedures, as required by Rule 13a-15(b) and 15d-15(b) under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the �Exchange Act�) as of March 31, 2007. Our disclosure controls and procedures
are designed to reasonably assure that information required to be disclosed by us in reports we file or submit under the
Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding disclosure and is recorded, processed,
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summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC�s rules and forms.

Our management, with the participation of the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, believes that our
disclosure controls and procedures are effective to provide such reasonable assurance.
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Our management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, believes that any disclosure
controls and procedures or internal controls and procedures, no matter how well conceived and operated, can provide
only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the control system are met. Further, the design of a
control system must reflect the fact that there are resource constraints, and the benefits of controls must be considered
relative to their costs. Because of the inherent limitations in all control systems, we cannot provide absolute assurance
that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, within Covanta have been prevented or detected. These inherent
limitations include the realities that judgments in decision-making can be faulty, and that breakdowns can occur
because of simple error or mistake. Additionally, controls can be circumvented by the individual acts of some persons,
by collusion of two or more people, or by unauthorized override of the control. The design of any systems of controls
also is based in part upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events, and there can be no assurance that
any design will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential future conditions. Accordingly, because of the
inherent limitations in a cost effective control system, misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and may not be
detected.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

During the second quarter of 2006, we began implementation of a new operating system for the recording of
information relating to our business. We expect to complete this implementation by the end of the second quarter of
2007. We initiated this effort as part of a routine system upgrade and as part of our integration efforts related to the
ARC Holdings acquisition. We believe the new operating system, when fully implemented, will maintain and enhance
our system of internal controls over financial reporting and our ability to record, process, summarize and report
information required to be disclosed within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission�s
rules and forms.

PART II � OTHER INFORMATION

ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

See Note 16. Commitments and Contingencies of the Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

There have been no material changes during the three months ended March 31, 2007 to the risk factors discussed in
Item 1A. Risk Factors in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006.

ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS

None.

ITEM 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES

None.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

None.

ITEM 5. OTHER INFORMATION
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(a) None.

(b) Not applicable.
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ITEM 6. EXHIBITS

Exhibit
Number Description

31.1 Certification pursuant to Section 302 of Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 by the Chief Executive Officer.
31.2 Certification pursuant to Section 302 of Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 by the Chief Financial Officer.
32 Certification of periodic financial report pursuant to Section 906 of Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 by the

Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

Covanta Holding Corporation
(Registrant)

By: /s/  Mark A. Pytosh
Mark A. Pytosh
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

By: /s/  Thomas E. Bucks
Thomas E. Bucks
Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer

Date: April 30, 2007
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